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ATRION CORPORATION
FORM 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT TO
THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
General

Atrion Corporation (“Atrion” or the “Company”jlesigns, develops, manufactures, sells and distésbproducts and components, primarily
the medical and healthcare industry. The Compapydducts range from ophthalmology and cardiovasqroducts to fluid delivery devict
The Company has a line of namedical components that are sold for use in aviatiod marine safety products. The Company also @nt
maintains a small gaseous oxygen pipeline thaicisiéntal to the overall operations of the Company.

The Companys fluid delivery products accounted for 32 perce8f, percent and 28 percent of net revenues for ,20006 and 200
respectively. The Company develops, manufacturdsnaarkets several specialized intravenous fluidvdg) tubing sets and accessories.
intravenous fluid delivery line includes more th&0 distinct models used for complex therapy prooesluemployed in anesthe
administration, intravenous fluid therapy, criticalre and oncology therapy. The Company is an tngiesader in the manufacturing of med
tubing clamps. These products include clamps affesuch features as six matchfitosizes with compatibility to all grades of medidubing
molding in a variety of materials, and compatigilivith different sterilization processes. The Comga swabbable luer valve allo
needleless luer connections to luer access deiid®sapplications. These valves provide an ecomatdnieplacement for needle access pol
drug delivery and IV applications and maintainexi, closed IV system without the need for repfaent caps. The Company has develoj
wide variety of luer syringe check valves and eret valves designed to fill, hold and release adlgd amounts of fluids or gasses on den
for use in various intubation, catheter and otlpgliaations.

The Companys cardiovascular products accounted for 27 perc&htpercent and 27 percent of net revenues for ,20086 and 200
respectively. At the heart of the Company’s cardsnular products is the MPS2® Myocardial ProtectBystem (“MPS2"),a proprietar
technology that delivers essential fluids and metibnis to the heart during opéeart surgery. The MPS2 integrates key functioteting tc
the delivery of solutions to the heart, such agyinarthe rate and ratio of oxygenated blood, ctigith potassium and other additives,
controlling temperature, pressure and other vee&gld allow simpler, more flexible management @ firocess, indicating improved pati
outcomes. New features include an expanded flogaalow volume mode and cyclic flow mode. The MRSthe only device used in open-
heart surgery that allows for the mixing of druggoi the bloodstream without diluting the blood. T#S2 employs advanced pui
temperature control and microprocessor technolaaiesincludes a line of disposable products. Then@gamy also develops, manufactures
markets other cardiovascular products which cormistcipally of the following: cardiac surgery vaou relief valves; Retract-O-Ta@e
silicone vessel loops for retracting and occludirggsels in minimally invasive surgical proceduriedtation devices for balloon cathe
dilation, stent deployment and fluid dispensingg &lean-Cut® rotating aortic punch and PerfectCli®totomy System, both of which &
used in heart bypass surgery to make a precisiening in the heart for attachment of the bypasseilss
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The Companys ophthalmic products accounted for 20 percenfjek@ent and 20 percent of net revenues for 20006 26d 2005, respective
Atrion is a leading manufacturer of soft contagislestorage and disinfection cases. Atrion prodecesmplete line of products which

compatible with all solutions for use with soft rigid gas permeable lenses. The Company also waeitkscustomers to provide customi:
distribution of products. As a registered pharmécalreseller, Atrion provides custom packagingliding component purchasing as we
labeling. Warehousing as well as inventory managenie included in Atrion's complete kitting serdceThe Company also desic
manufactures, sells and distributes the LacriCATpt&duct line, a line of balloon catheters thatsgdiin the treatment of nasolacrimal
obstruction in children and adults. Nasolacrimadtcabstruction can cause a condition called epiplidnronic tearing). People affected by
condition experience excessive and uncontrollabfing and often encounter infection as a resulhaffolacrimal blockage. LacriCA™
balloon catheters are the only balloon cathetetis mdod and Drug Administration (“FDA”) approvalrfose in this application.

The Company’s other medical and nmedical products accounted for 21 percent, 22 péweed 25 percent of net revenues for 2007, 200
2005, respectively. Atrion is the leading manufeetwf inflation systems and valves used in masainé aviation safety products. The Comg
manufactures inflation devices, oral inflation tapgght angle connectors, valves, and closurefifiovests, life rafts, inflatable boats, survi
equipment, and other inflatable structures. Atrédso produces many one-way and tway "Breather" valves for use on electronics ci
munitions cases, pressure vessels, transportatistaioer cases, escape slides, and many other ahetid normedical applications requirii
pressure relief. Atrion provides contract manufeoty services for other major original equipmentnufacturers of medical devices. ~
Company has the ability to take a product from ephchrough design, development and prototype hadl way to fullscale productic
manufacturing. Core competencies include engingepioduct design and development, prototyping, rabe insert and injection moldir
automation, RF-welding, ultrasonic and heat sealamgl sterile packaging. The CompaRCTester product line consists of instrument:
and associated disposables used to measure thatedticlotting time of blood. The Company manufeedy sells and distributes a line
products designed for safe needle and scalpel lad@inment. The Company owns and maintains a iB24mgh-pressure steel pipeline
north Alabama that is leased to an industrial gagycer that transports gaseous oxygen to ons ofigtomers.

Marketing and Major Customers

The Company markets components to other equipmentfacturers for incorporation in their products aells finished devices to physicie
hospitals, clinics and other treatment centersesSalanagers working with a direct sales force, cimsioned sales agents, and distribt
handle these sales. The Companyales managers work closely with major custornmedesigning and developing products to meet cusi
requirements.

Company revenues from sales to parties outsid&tiited States totaled approximately 36 percenp&@ent and 27 percent of the Company’
net revenues in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectiTélgse sales are made to various manufacturershamagh distributors in over 50 countt
outside the United States. Company revenues froas $a parties in Canada totaled approximately dréent, 11 percent and 11 percent o
Company’s net revenues in 2007, 2006 and 2005¢ctisply.

The Company offers customer service, training ahutation, and technical support such as field sengpare parts, maintenance and repe
certain of its products. The Company periodicaliiyertises its products in trade journals, routinefends and participates in industry ti
shows throughout the United States and internatigrend sponsors scientific symposia as a mearnisseminating product information. 1
Company provides supportive literature on the bienef its products.

During 2007, Novartis was the Company’s only custoraccounting for more than 10 percent of the Camarevenues, with vario
products sold to several divisions of Novartis astmg for approximately 14 percent of the Compamgvenues. The loss of this custa
would have a material adverse impact on the Conipdusiness, financial condition and results ofratiens.
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Manufacturing

The Company's medical products and other comporagatproduced at facilities in Arab, Alabama, SttePsburg, Florida and Allen, Tex
The facilities in Arab and St. Petersburg bothizgilplastic injection molding and specialized adsignas their primary manufacturi
processes. The Compasydther manufacturing processes consist of thenddgeof standard and custom component parts andetteng o
completed products.

The Company devotes significant attention to gualgsurance. Its quality assurance measures bétithe suppliers which participate in
Company’s supplier quality assurance program. titiooes at the manufacturing level where many camepts are assembled in eléar
room” environment designed and maintained to reduce ptagkposure to particulate matter. Products atedetroughout the manufactur
process for adherence to specifications. MostHedsproducts are then shipped to outside proce&sosserilization by radiation or ethyle
oxide gas. After sterilization, the products aramntined and tested before they are shipped toroess.

Skills of assembly workers required for the mantifee of medical products are similar to those resflin typical assembly operations.
Company currently employs workers with the skilkxassary for its assembly operations and belidnatsadditional workers with these sk
are readily available in the areas where the Cowiparants are located.

The Company’s medical device operations are ISO3.2483 certified and are subject to FDA jurisdintidhe Company’s nomedical devic
operations are 1ISO9001-2000 certified.

Research and Development

The Company believes that a well-targeted resemmdndevelopment program is an essential part o€tdmpanys activities, and the Compe
is currently engaged in a number of research amdldement projects. The objective of the Comparprogram is to develop new product
the Companys current product lines, improve current productd develop new product lines. Recent major devetypmrojects include, b
are not limited to, inflation devices for ballooatketer dilation, stent deployment, tissue disptae@ and fluid dispensing; inflation devices
orthopedic procedures; advanced contact lens didioh systems; product-line expansion in ophthédgg productline expansion for MP<
products; products designed for safe needle anipeddalade containment; and the integration of teéwe technology with fluid delive
products. The Company expects to incur additioes¢arch and development expenses in 2008 for sapimjects.

The Companys consolidated research and development expenslitare2007, 2006 and 2005 were $2,778,000, $2,794,and $2,396,0C
respectively.

Availability of Raw Materials

The principal raw materials that the Company usests products are polyethylene, polypropylene gdyvinyl chloride resins. Tt
Companys ability to operate profitably is dependent, igapart, on the market for these resins. As tmesims used by the Company
derived from petroleum and natural gas, pricedtiat® substantially as a result of changes in [getno and natural gas prices, demand an
capacity of the companies that produce these ptedaeneet market needs. Instability in the worlarkets for petroleum and natural gas ¢
adversely affect the prices of the Company’s raveni@s and their general availability.
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The Company subcontracts with various suppliersravide the quantity of component parts necessagssemble the Compasyproducts
Almost all of these components are available fromuanber of different suppliers, although certaimponents are purchased from sil
sources that manufacture these components usingdimpanys toolings. The Company believes that there aiisfaatory alternative sourc
for single-sourced components, although a suddenigtion in supply from one of these suppliers dadversely affect the Compagyability
to deliver finished products on time. The Compamn® the molds used for production of a majorityitefcomponents. Consequently, in
event of supply disruption, the Company would ble ab fabricate its own components or subcontratit another supplier, albeit after a de
in the production process.

Patents and License Agreements

The commercial success of the Company is depentepgrt, on its ability to continue to develop gratable products, to preserve its ti
secrets and to operate without infringing or violgtthe proprietary rights of third parties. Then@many currently has 287 active patents
patent applications pending on products that gheeebeing sold or are in development. The Compaays royalties to outside parties for {
patents. All of these patents and patents pendiladerto current products being sold by the Compmartg products in evaluation stages.

The Company has developed technical knowledge whilthough norpatentable, is considered to be significant in énght to compete
However, the proprietary nature of such knowledgsy iime difficult to protect. The Company has entéréd agreements with key employ
prohibiting them from disclosing any confidentiafarmation or trade secrets of the Company. Intamidithese agreements also provide
any inventions or discoveries relating to the besiof the Company by these individuals will beégaes] to the Company and become
Company's sole property.

The medical device industry is characterized byemrsive intellectual property litigation, and comigsnin the medical products indus
sometimes use intellectual property litigation inga competitive advantage. Intellectual propétigation, regardless of outcome, is of
complex and expensive, and the outcome of thgaliibn is generally difficult to predict.

Competition

Depending on the product and the nature of theeptpthe Company competes on the basis of itstaldi provide engineering and des
expertise, quality, service, product and price. skgh, successful competitors must have technicahgth, responsiveness and scale.
Company believes that its expertise and reputdtolguality medical products have allowed it to quete favorably with respect to each <
factor and to maintain long-term relationships withcustomers.

However, in many of the Comparsymarkets, the Company competes with numerous otirapanies in the sale of healthcare products. €
markets are dominated by established manufactthratdhiave broader product lines, greater distrimutiapabilities, substantially greater ca|
resources and larger marketing, research and dewelat staffs and facilities than those of the Camypaany of these competitors of
broader product lines within the specific produetrket and in the general field of medical deviced supplies. Broad product lines give m
of the Company’s cardiovascular and fluid delivepmpetitors the ability to negotiate exclusive,ddarm medical device supply contre
and, consequently, the ability to offer comprehemgricing of their competing products. By offeriadroader product line in the general 1
of medical devices and supplies, competitors map &lave a significant advantage in marketing comgegtroducts to group purchas
organizations, HMOs and other managed care orgé#mizathat are increasingly seeking to reduce cistaugh centralization of purchas
functions. Furthermore, innovations in surgicaht@ques or medical practices could have the efiéceducing or eliminating market dem:
for one or more of the Company’s products. In addjtthe Company competitors may use price reductions to preserasket share in the
product markets.
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Depending on the product and the nature of theeptpfhe Company competes in contract manufactwinthe basis of its ability to provi
engineering and design expertise as well as orbéisés of product and price. The Company frequetdlgigns products for a custome
potential customer prior to entering into lotggm development and manufacturing agreements thvithcustomer. Because these product
somewhat limited in number and normally are onoeponent of the ultimate product sold by its costes, the Company is dependent o
ability to meet the requirements of those majoitheare companies and must continually be atteritiibe need to manufacture such proc
at competitive prices and in compliance with stmanufacturing standards. The Company competesanitimber of contract manufacturer
medical products. Most of these competitors arellsamenpanies that do not offer the breadth of smrsioffered by the Company to
customers.

The Company also competes in the market for imftatievices used in marine and aviation equipmem. Company is the dominant provi
in this market area.

Government Regulation
Products

The manufacture and sale of medical products adpgesuto regulation by numerous United States guwental authorities, principally t
FDA, and corresponding foreign agencies. The rebeand development, manufacturing, promotion, ntargeand distribution of medic
products in the United States are governed by #uefal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act and the regnatpromulgated thereundeFPC Acl
and Regulations”)All manufacturers of medical devices must registigh the FDA and list all medical devices manufaetuiby them. The li
must be updated annually. The Companyiedical product subsidiaries and certain of tbegtomers are subject to inspection by the FD,
compliance with such regulations and procedurestl@dCompanys medical products manufacturing facilities arejecthto regulation by tt
FDA.

The FDA has traditionally pursued a rigorous erdament program to ensure that regulated entitiepbomith the FDC Act and Regulatiol
A company not in compliance may face a varietyegfulatory actions, including warning letters, proiddetentions, device alerts, manda
recalls or field corrections, product seizuresaltair partial suspension of production, injunctigetions or civil penalties and crimi
prosecutions of the company or responsible empkyaicers and directors. The Companhyedical products subsidiaries and certain of
customers are subject to these inspections. Thep@oyrbelieves that it has met all FDA requirements.

Under the FDA's requirements, if a manufacturer establish that a newly-developed device is “sutigtly equivalent™to a legally markete
device, the manufacturer may seek marketing clearfitom the FDA to market the device by filing aD8) premarket notification with tl
FDA. The 510(k) premarket notification must be soqped by data establishing the claim of substartiplivalence to the satisfaction of
FDA. The process of obtaining a 510(k) clearangacblly can take several months to a year or lontjesubstantial equivalence cannol
established or if the FDA determines that the deviequires a more rigorous review, the FDA will uieg that the manufacturer subm
premarket approval (“PMA”hat must be reviewed and approved by the FDA poionarketing and sale of the device in the Unéates. Th
process of obtaining a PMA can be expensive, uaiceand lengthy, frequently requiring anywhere frone to several years from the dat
FDA submission. Both a 510(k) and a PMA, if grantetay include significant limitations on the indied uses for which a product may
marketed. FDA enforcement policy strictly prohibitee promotion of approved medical devices for ymaped uses. In addition, prod
approvals can be withdrawn for failure to complythwregulatory requirements or the occurrence obredeen problems following init
marketing. The Company believes that it is in cdanme with these rules.
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Certain aviation and marine safety products ar® alsbject to regulation by the United States Cdasard and the Federal Aviati
Administration and similar organizations in foreigountries which regulate the safety of marine avidtion equipment.

Third-Party Reimbursement and Cost Containment

In the United States, healthcare providers, incgdiospitals and physicians, that purchase megicalucts for treatment of their patie
generally rely on thirgparty payors, principally federal Medicare, stateditaid and private health insurance plans, tolaise all or a part
the costs and fees associated with the procederésmed using these products.

Reimbursement systems in international markets wgyificantly by country and by region within sonceuntries, and reimbursem
approvals must be obtained on a country-by-coubtigis. Many international markets have governmaesitaged healthcare systems
control reimbursement for new products and procesiuin most markets, there are private insuransgesys as well as governmengnage
systems. Market acceptance of the Company’s predndhternational markets depends, in part, oratreglability and level of reimbursement.

Medicare and Medicaid reimbursement for hospitalgenerally based on a fixed amount for admittingatient with a specific diagnos
Because of this fixed reimbursement method, hdspiteay seek to use less costly methods in tredWlegicare and Medicaid patier
Frequently, reimbursement is reduced to reflecttraglability of a new procedure or technique, asd result hospitals are generally willin
implement new cost saving technologies before ttiEsenward adjustments take effect. Likewise, beeathe rate of reimbursement
physicians who perform certain procedures has bednmay in the future be reduced, physicians mal gesater cost efficiency in treatm
to minimize any negative impact of reduced reimbeorent. Thirdparty payors may challenge the prices charged fedical products ai
services and may deny reimbursement if they detegrtiiat a device was not used in accordance wehetfective treatment methods
determined by the payor, was experimental or wad €@ an unapproved application.

The Company anticipates that Congress, state &gisks and the private sector will continue toeevand assess alternative healthcare de
and payment systems. Potential approaches that beee considered include mandated basic healthmamefits, controls on healthc
spending through limitations on the growth of ptév&ealth insurance premiums and Medicare and MabHgpending, the creation of la
insurance purchasing groups, price controls andrdtimdamental changes to the healthcare delivestes. The Company cannot predict v
impact the adoption of any federal or state heatdceform measures, future private sector refarmarket forces may have on its business.

Product Liability and Insurance

The design, manufacture and marketing of produtthe types the Company produces entail an inhatisktof product liability claims. .
problem with one of the Comparsyproducts could result in product liability claimsa recall of, or safety alert or advisory notietating to
the product.

Advisory Board

Several physicians and perfusionists with substhatipertise in the field of myocardial protectgerve as Clinical Advisors for the Compe
These Clinical Advisors have assisted in the idieation of the market need for myocardial protectsystems and the subsequent desigl
development of the Company’s MPS2 and its predecebtembers of the Compargyimanagement and scientific and technical staffiftione
to time consult with these Clinical Advisors to teetunderstand the technical and clinical requireismef the cardiovascular surgical team
product functionality needed to meet those requineim The Company anticipates that these Clinichligors will play a similar role wil
respect to other products and may assist the Coyripaducating other physicians in the use of tHe94 and related products.
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Certain of the Clinical Advisors are employed by@demic institutions and may have commitments togamsulting or advisory agreeme
with, other entities that may limit their availahjilto the Company. The Clinical Advisors may at®sve as consultants to other medical de
companies. The Clinical Advisors are not expectedevote more than a small portion of their timéh® Company.

People

At January 31, 2008, the Company had 492tfale employees. Employee relations are good ane the&s been no work stoppage due to |
disagreements. None of the Company's employeepissented by any labor union.

Available Information

The Company’s website address is www.atrioncorp.cAthof the Companys filings with the U. S. Securities and Exchangen@ussiot
(“SEC"), including the Company’s Annual Report oorf 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and CuriReports on Form &, are
available free of charge through its website. Theperts are posted to the website as soon asr&alggracticable after they are filed with
furnished to the SEC.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

In addition to the other information contained lmistForm 10K, the following risk factors should be considermatefully in evaluating ol
business. Our business, financial condition orltesf operations could be materially adverselyeti#d by any of these risks. Additional ri
and uncertainties that we do not currently knowudloo that we currently believe are immaterialtteat we have not predicted, may also
our business operations or adversely affect us.

o Our business is dependent on the price and availdly of resins and our ability to pass on resin prée increases to ot
customers.
The principal raw materials that we use in our picid are polyethylene, polypropylene and polyvitiyloride resins. Our abili
to operate profitably is dependent, in large pamtthe market for these resins. The resins usedskgre derived from petrolel
and natural gas; therefore, prices fluctuate sakistly as a result of changes in petroleum andnadigas prices, demand and
capacity of the companies that produce these ptedocmeet market needs. Instability in the worldrkets for petroleum a
natural gas could adversely affect the prices ofraw materials and their general availability.

Our ability to maintain profitability is heavily gendent upon our ability to pass through to outamasrs the full amount of a
increase in raw material costs. If resin priceséase and we are not able to fully pass on theases to our customers, our re:
of operations and our financial condition will bevarsely affected.

« The loss of a key supplier of raw materials couldelad to increased costs and lower profit margins
The loss of a key supplier would force us to puseheaw materials in the open market, which maytd@gier prices, until w
could secure another source and such higher pn@ss not allow us to remain competitive. If we amable to obtain ra
materials in sufficient quantities, we may not éeao manufacture our products. Even if we werle &b replace one of our ri
material suppliers through another supply arrangebere is no assurance that the terms that wer @rio with such alterne
supplier will be as favorable as the supply arramgrets that we currently have.
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« A substantial portion of our customer relationshipsare open shor-term purchase commitments and, as a result, many afur
customers may unilaterally reduce the purchase ofuw products.
A substantial portion of our customer relationshaps based on open short-term purchase commitm&snes result, many of our
customers may unilaterally reduce the purchaseiopomducts or, in certain cases, terminate exjstirders for which we may
have incurred significant production costs. A loés major customer or a number of our smalleramsts could materially
adversely affect our financial condition and reswoit operations.

« Product liability claims could adversely affect ourfinancial condition and results of operations
We may be subject to product liability claims invialy claims of personal injury or property dama@ar product liabilit
insurance coverage may not be adequate to covenstef defense and the potential award in theteoka claim. Also, a well-
publicized actual or perceived problem could adeigraffect our reputation and reduce the demanadioproducts.

« Our success is dependent on our ability to developatentable products, to preserve our trade secretand operate withou
infringing or violating the proprietary rights of t hird parties.

Others may challenge the validity of any patengsiésl to us, and we could encounter legal and fiahdificulties in enforcin
our patent rights against infringers. In additithhere can be no assurance that other technologigstor will not be developed
that patents will not be obtained by others whiabuld render our patents less valuable or obsofdteough we do not belie
that patents are the sole determinant in the coriaiesuccess of our products, the loss of a sicgnifi percentage of our patent
of our patents relating to a specific major proding could have a material adverse effect on augirtess, financial condition a
results of operations.

We have developed technical knowledge which, atjhouonpatentable, we consider to be significant in emaplis to compet
However, the proprietary nature of such knowledgg tme difficult to protect.

The medical device industry is characterized brsive intellectual property litigation, and comiesnin the medical produt
industry sometimes use intellectual property lifiga to gain a competitive advantage. Intellectualperty litigation, regardless
outcome, is often complex and expensive, and theome of this litigation is generally difficult foredict.

An adverse determination in any such proceedinddcsubject us to significant liabilities to thirdaies or require us to se¢
licenses from third parties or pay royalties thayrbe substantial. Furthermore, there can be norasse that necessary licer
would be available to us on satisfactory terms toala Accordingly, an adverse determination inudigial or administrativ
proceeding or failure to obtain necessary licertsrgd prevent us from manufacturing or selling aiertof our products, whit
could have a material adverse effect on our busjrfggncial condition and results of operations.

« International patent protection is uncertain.
Patent law outside the United States is uncertaihig currently undergoing review and revision iany countries. Further, t
laws of some foreign countries may not protect iatellectual property rights to the same extenUagted States laws. We m
participate in opposition proceedings to deternthne validity of our or our competitorgoreign patents, which could resuli
substantial costs and diversion of our efforts.
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New lines of business or new products and servicamy subject us to additional risks.

From time to time, we may implement new lines o$ibhess or offer new products and services withistigrg lines of busines
There are substantial risks and uncertainties &gedcwith these efforts, particularly in instanedsere the markets are not fu
developed. In developing and marketing new linebugfiness or new products and services, we majstirsignificant time ar
resources. Initial timetables for the introductemd development of new lines of business and neduats or services may not
achieved and price and profitability targets may pmve feasible. External factors, such as compkawith regulation
competitive alternatives, and shifting market prefees, may also impact the successful implementati a new line of busine
or a new product or service. Furthermore, any negdf business or new product or service coulcetasignificant impact on t
effectiveness of our system of internal controksilufe to successfully manage these risks in theldpment and implementati
of new lines of business or new products or sesvarild have a material adverse effect on our lgsiresults of operations i
financial condition.

Some of our competitors have significantly greateresources than we do, and it may be difficult for & to compete against therr

In many of our markets, we compete with numerobgmotompanies that have substantially greater €imaresources and eng:
in substantially more research and developmentities than we do. Furthermore, innovations in gaigtechniques or medic
practices could have the effect of reducing or mlating market demand for one or more of our presluc

Some of the markets in which we compete are domihby established manufacturers that have broadeiupt lines, great
distribution capabilities, substantially larger keting, research and development staffs and fesilithan we do. Many of the
competitors offer broader product lines within gpecific product market and in the general fieldn&fdical devices and suppli
Broad product lines give many of our cardiovascealad fluid delivery competitors the ability to néigte exclusive, longern
medical device supply contracts and, consequetitly,ability to offer comprehensive pricing of thelmmpeting products.
offering a broader product line in the generaldfielf medical devices and supplies, competitors migp have a significa
advantage in marketing competing products to grpupchasing organizations. In addition, our contpeti may use pric
reductions to preserve market share in their prochackets.

We are subject to substantial governmental regulatin and our failure to comply with applicable goverrmental regulations
could subject us to numerous penalties, any of whiccould adversely affect our business.

We are subject to numerous governmental regulatielasing to, among other things, our ability tdl ®&ir products, thirdparty
reimbursement and Medicare and Medicaid fraud dndsex If we do not comply with applicable governtaémegulation:
governmental authorities could do any of the foilogv

. impose fines and penalties on us;

. prevent us from manufacturing our products;

. bring civil or criminal charges against us;

. delay the introduction of our new products into mharket;
. recall or seize our products;

. disrupt the manufacture or distribution of our prots; or
. withdraw or deny approvals for our produc

Any one of these results could materially adverséigct our revenues and profitability and harm i@jgutation.
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. We

will be unable to sell our products if we fail ® comply with manufacturing regulations.

To manufacture our products commercially, we mushgly with government manufacturing regulationst tgavern desig
controls, quality systems and documentation pdigiad procedures. The FDA and equivalent foreigregomental authoritit
periodically inspect our manufacturing facilitiesdathe manufacturing facilities of our OEM medidalvice customers. If we
our OEM medical device customers fail to complytwthese manufacturing regulations or fail any FD#piections our marketi
or distribution of our products may be preventedelayed, which would negatively impact our busines

« Our products are subject to product recalls even aér receiving regulatory clearance or approval, andany such recalls wouli
negatively affect our financial performance and cold harm our reputation.

. We

. We

Any of our products may be found to have significdeficiencies or defects in design or manufactiitee FDA and simil¢
governmental authorities in other countries haweahthority to require the recall of any such défecproduct. A government-
mandated or voluntary recall could occur as a tesfutomponent failures, manufacturing errors osigle defects. We do r
maintain insurance to cover losses incurred asutref product recalls. Any product recall woulgett managerial and financ
resources and negatively affect our financial penince, and could harm our reputation with custeraed end-users.

may not receive regulatory approvals for new prduct candidates or approvals may be delaye«

Regulation by government authorities in the Unittthtes and foreign countries is a significant fadto the developmer
manufacture and marketing of our proposed prodaretsin our ongoing research and product developmetitities. Any failur
to receive the regulatory approvals necessary tonoercialize our product candidates, or the subsgquighdrawal of any suc
approvals, would harm our business. The processbtaining these approvals and the subsequent canggliwith federal a1
state statutes and regulations require spendingtantinl time and financial resources. If we faibbtain or maintain, or encour
delays in obtaining or maintaining, regulatory apats, it could adversely affect the marketing o @roducts we develop, ¢
ability to receive product revenues, and our liggyidnd capital resources.

rely on technology to operate our business andg failure of these systems could harm our busines

We rely heavily on communications and informatigrstems to conduct our business, enhance custormédceseand increa:
employee productivity. Any failure, interruption breach in security of these systems could resufilures or disruptions in @
customer relationship management, general ledgeentory, manufacturing and other systems. Themoisssurance that ¢
such failures, interruptions or security breachdsnet occur or, if they do occur, that they wile adequately addressed by
policies and procedures that are intended to safegaur systems. The occurrence of any failuregrrimptions or securi
breaches of our information systems could damageeputation, result in a loss of customer businsabject us to additior
regulatory scrutiny, or expose us to civil litigatiand possible financial liability, any of whichudd have a material adverse ef
on our financial condition and results of operasion
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« We sell many of our products to healthcare provides that rely on Medicare, Medicaid and private heal insurance plans tc
reimburse the costs associated with the procedurgserformed using our products and these third party payors may den
reimbursement for use of our products.

We are dependent, in part, upon the ability of theake providers to obtain satisfactory reimbursanfrem thirdparty payors fc

medical procedures in which our products are uskuld-party payors may deny reimbursement if they deteenthat a prescrib

product has not received appropriate regulatorgralgces or approvals, is not used in accordande aeisteffective treatmel

methods as determined by the payor, or is expetaheimnecessary or inappropriate. Failure by hakpand other users of

products to obtain reimbursement from third-partyqrs, or adverse changes in government and privéte-party payors’
policies toward reimbursement for procedures enip@pyur products, could have a material adversecefbn the Company’
business, financial condition and results of openat Major thirdparty payors for medical services in the Unitede3tand otht

countries continue to work to contain healthcarsteoThe introduction of cost containment incergjveombined with clos

scrutiny of healthcare expenditures by both privagalth insurers and employers, has resulted ire@sed discounts a

contractual adjustments to charges for servicefopeed. Further implementation of legislative omadistrative reforms to tt

United States or international reimbursement systama manner that significantly reduces reimbuesgnfior procedures usi

our products or denies coverage for such proceduoedd have an adverse effect on our businesspdiahcondition and resu

of operations. Hospitals or physicians may resporitiese costontainment pressures by substituting lower castiyets or othe

therapies for our products.

« We may not be able to attract and retain skilled peple
Our success depends, in large part, on our abdigttract and retain key people. Competition far best people in most activit
we engage in can be intense and we may not betaliliee people or to retain them. The unexpectsd laf services of one
more of our key personnel could have a materiabestvimpact on our business because of their skillswledge of our marki
years of industry experience and the difficultypadmptly finding qualified replacement personnel.

« Severe weather, natural disasters, acts of war oetrorism or other external events could significanly impact our business.
We currently conduct all our development, manufacstuand management at three locations. Severeheeatatural disaste
acts of war or terrorism and other adverse extesmahts at any one or more of these locations doaNeé a significant impact
our ability to conduct business. Our disaster recpyolicies and procedures may not be effectivethr occurrence of any st
event could have a material adverse effect on asimless, which, in turn, could have a material eslveffect on our financi
condition and results of operations. The insurameenaintain may not be adequate to cover our losses

« Our stock price can be volatile.
Stock price volatility may make it more difficulbif our stockholders to sell their common stock wtiezy want and at prices tt
find attractive. Our stock price can fluctuate #igantly in response to a variety of factors irdilug, among other things:

. actual or anticipated variations in quarterly resof operations

. recommendations by securities analysts;

. operating and stock price performance of other amigs that investors deem comparable to the Company
. perceptions in the marketplace regarding the Compad our competitors;

. new technology used, or services offered, by coitgust
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. trading by funds with high-turnover practices oattgies;

. significant acquisitions or business combinatiosisategic partnerships, joint ventures or capit@imitments by ¢
involving the Company or our competito

. failure to integrate acquisitions or realize amptited benefits from acquisitions;

. changes in government regulations; and

. geopolitical conditions such as acts or threatewbrism or military conflicts.

General market fluctuations, industry factors arehegal economic and political conditions and evestgch as econon
slowdowns or recessions, interest rate changeseditdoss trends, could also cause our stock pocdecrease regardless
operating results.

Our sales and operations are subject to the risksf@oing business internationally

We are increasing our presence in internationaketay which subjects us to many risks, such as:

. economic problems that disrupt foreign healthcayment system:

. the imposition of governmental contro

. less favorable intellectual property or other aggttie laws

. the inability to obtain any necessary foreign ratpiy or pricing approvals of products in a timelgnner;
. changes in tax laws and tariffs; and

. longer payment cycles.

Our operations and marketing practices are alsgesubp regulation and scrutiny by the governmasftshe other countries
which we operate. In addition, the Foreign Corrlppactices Act, or FCPA, prohibits United States pames and the
representatives from offering, promising, autherigzior making payments to foreign officials for tharpose of obtaining

retaining business abroad. In certain countries hémalthcare professionals we regularly interath wiay meet the definition o
foreign official for purposes of the FCPAdditionally, we are subject to other United Stdeess in our international operatio
Failure to comply with domestic or foreign laws btesult in various adverse consequences, incjugossible delay in appro
or refusal to approve a product, recalls, seizumithdrawal of an approved product from the market]/or the imposition of ci\
or criminal sanctions.

A portion of our business is conducted in currenaé¢her than our reporting currency, the UnitedteStdollar. We recogni
foreign currency gains or losses arising from operations in the period in which we incur thosengabr losses. As a res
currency fluctuations among the United States daltal the currencies in which we do business Mfidc our operating resul
often in unpredictable ways.

We may experience fluctuations in our quarterly opeating results.

We have historically experienced, and may contimoeexperience, fluctuations in our quarterly opegtresults. The:
fluctuations are due to a number of factors, mamyltch are outside our control, and may resulvatatility of our stock price
Future operating results will depend on many fagtmrcluding:

. demand for our products;

. pricing decisions, and those of our competitorsluiding decisions to increase or decrease prices;
. regulatory approvals for our products;

. timing and levels of spending for research and bgveent; sales and marketing;

. timing and market acceptance of new product intctidas by us or our competitors;

. development or expansion of business infrastrudgturew clinical and geographic marke

. tax rates in the jurisdictions in which we oper:

. shipping delays or interruption

-12-




Table of Contents

. customer credit holds;
. timing and recognition of certain research and tgraent milestones and license fees;
. ability to control our cost:

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

The Company is headquartered in Allen, Texas, aamhtains operations at that location (108,000 sgfieet on 19 acres) as well as in A
Alabama (112,000 square feet on 67 acres), anBe®¢rsburg, Florida (178,000 square feet on 11spckeach facility houses administrat
engineering, manufacturing, and warehousing opmrati All operational facilities are Company owned.

The Company owns and maintains a 22-mile hpgkssure steel pipeline that transports gaseougeoxypetween Decatur and Courtls
Alabama.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Company has no pending legal proceedings diygeedescribed in Item 103 of Regulation S-K.
ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

During the fourth quarter of 2007, no matters warbmitted to a vote of security holders.

Executive Officers of the Company

Name Age Title
Emile A. Battat 69 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

the Company and Chairman or Preside
all subsidiarie:

David A. Battat 38 President and Chief Operating Officer
the Company and President of Halkey-
Roberts

Jeffery Stricklanc 49 Vice President and Chief Financial Offic

Secretary and Treasurer of the Comj
and Vice President or Secretafyeasure
of all subsidiarie:

Emile A. Battat and Jeffery Strickland currentlynseas officers of the Company and all subsidiarizasvid A. Battat currently serves as
officer of the Company and Halkdégeberts. The officers of the Company and its suas&s are elected annually by the respective Boal
Directors of the Company and its subsidiaries atfitst meeting of such Boards of Directors helgtrathe annual meetings of stockholder
such entities. Accordingly, the terms of officetloé current officers of the Company and its sulasids will expire at the time such meeting
the Board of Directors of the Company and its libsies are held, which is anticipated to be in N28$8.

There are no arrangements or understandings betargeaofficer and any other person pursuant to whhiehofficer was elected. There are
family relationships between any of the executiffeers or directors except that David A. Battathie son of Emile A. Battat.
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There have been no events under any bankruptcy@atiminal proceedings and no judgments or injiens material to the evaluation of
ability and integrity of any executive officers thg the past five years.

Brief Account of Business Experience During the Pag-ive Years

Mr. Emile Battat has been a director of the Compsinge 1987 and has served as Chairman of the Rddahé Company since January 1¢
Mr. Battat has served as Chief Executive Officethef Company and as Chairman or President of bidiaries since October 1998. Mr. Be
also served as President of the Company from Octt##8 until May 2007.

Mr. David Battat has been President and Chief Qper®fficer of the Company since May 2007. Mr. Bahas served as President of Halkey-
Roberts (a subsidiary) since January 2006 and dérem February 2005 through December 2005 as WaRa@berts’ Vice PresidentBusines
Development and General Counsel. From 2002 thr@0§d, Mr. Battat was engaged in the private praaticlaw.

Mr. Strickland has served as Vice President anéfGtinancial Officer, Secretary and Treasurer ef@ompany since February 1, 1997 anc
served as Vice President or Secretary-Treasurealfdhe Company subsidiaries since January 1997. Mr. Stricklamg wmployed by ti
Company or its subsidiaries in various other posgifrom September 1983 through January 1997.

PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOC KHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
REPURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

The Companys common stock is traded on the Nasdag Global Sklacket (Symbol ATRI). As of February 22, 2008etompany he
approximately 1,400 stockholders, including benafiowners holding shares in nominee or “straetine. The high and low closing price:
reported by Nasdaq for each quarter of 2006 and@ 206 shown below.

Year Ended

December 31, 2006: High Low
First Quarte! $ 78.9¢ $ 66.3(
Second Quarte $ 80.9¢ $ 64.31
Third Quartel $ 7750 $ 67.37
Fourth Quarte $ 7952 % 75.1%
Year Ended

December 31, 2007: High Low
First Quarte! $ 95.0C $ 78.31
Second Quarte $ 98.7¢ $ 89.5(
Third Quartel $ 125.0C $ 96.3(
Fourth Quarte $ 126.00 $ 107.6¢

In September 2003, the Company announced thatdtgsdBof Directors had approved a policy for the mawt of regular quarterly ce
dividends on the Comparg/'common stock. The Company began paying a quatagh dividend of $.12 per share starting in Saptr o
2003. The quarterly dividend was increased to $ddshare in September of 2004, to $.17 per sha®eptember 2005, to $.20 per shai
September 2006 and to $.24 per share in Septen@i@st. The Company paid quarterly dividends totaliig7 million to its stockholders
2007.

The following table provides certain informationoalb securities authorized for issuance under thagamy's equity compensation plans as of
December 31, 2007:
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Number of
securities
remaining
available for
Number of future
securities to Weightet- issuance
be issued average under equity
upon exercis  exercise pric  compensatio
of of plans
outstanding outstanding (excluding
options, options, securities
warrants anc  warrants ant reflected in
rights rights column (a))
Plan Categor (a) (b) (c)
Equity compensation plans approved by securitydrs| 157,44C $ 34.7¢® 58,524Y
Equity compensation plans not approved by sechutgiers 5212 $ 12.2:%) 2,29(?
Total 162,65 $  33.9¢Y 60,81¢

(1) Consists of shares of the Company's commork stathorized for issuance under (i) the Compan9871Stock Incentive Ple
which provides for the grant of nonqualified stoohtions, incentive stock options, stock apprecrafights, restricted stock a
performance shares and (ii) the Compar3006 Equity Incentive Plan which provides for tiiant to key employees and consultan
incentive and nonqualified stock options, restdctgock, restricted stock units (“RSUs”), deferrsbck units (“DSUSs”),stock
appreciation rights and performance shares. Thebeurof shares available for issuance under bothspla subject to equital
adjustment by the Compensation Committee of therdaéd Directors in the event of any change in thempany's capitalizatio
including, without limitation, a stock dividend stock split.

(2) Includes 5,000 shares of the Company's comsatock authorized for issuance upon exercise of ualified options granted
certain of the Company's clinical advisors on Fabyul0, 1998. All such options are now vested expire ten years from the gr.
date. The exercise price of the options is thsinfp price on the Nasdaq Global Select Market ef@mmpany’'s common stock on
grant date. Also includes 210 shares of the Comiparommon stock authorized for issuance upon seétie of DSU’s credited to non-
employee directors under the Company’s Deferred @sation Plan for NoBmployee Directors. The material terms of the [Hed
described in Note 8 to the consolidated finandetiesnents.

(3) The DSUs and RSUs are excluded from the catioul of the weighted average exercise price.

(4) Consists of shares of the Company’s commockstaoithorized for issuance upon settlement of D&htter the Compang’Deferre
Compensation Plan for Non-Employee Directors.

The Company has a Common Share Purchase Rights\i#igeh is intended to protect the interests otkhmlders in the event of a hos
attempt to take over the Company. The rights, vhkie not presently exercisable and do not havevatigg powers, represent the right of
Companys stockholders to purchase at a substantial discopan the occurrence of certain events, sharesramon stock of the Company
of an acquiring company involved in a business doatibn with the Company. This plan, which was @téd in August of 2006, expires

August of 2016.

During the year ended December 31, 2007, the Coyngihnot sell any equity securities that were regfistered under the Securities Ac
1933, and during the fourth quarter of 2007 didrepurchase any of its equity securities.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Selected Financial Data
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

Operating Results for the Year ended Decembe

Revenue: 88,54( $ 81,02( 72,08¢ 66,08: $ 62,80:

Operating incom 20,19:® 14,33¢ 12,69¢ 8,59¢ 6,92¢

Income from continuing operatiol 14,00¢® 10,60( 8,79¢ 6,30¢ 4,89;

Net income 14,00€% 10,76¢ 8,95¢ 6,47( 5,057

Depreciation and amortizatic 5,534 5,00¢ 5,38¢ 4,83( 4,78
Per Share Dat:

Income from continuin

operations, per diluted she 7.06® 5.42 457 3.41 2.6€

Net income per diluted sha 7.06® 5.51 4.6€ 3.5( 2.7¢

Cash dividends per common sh .88 .74 .62 .52 24

Average diluted shares outstand 1,98t 1,95: 1,92¢ 1,85( 1,83¢
Financial Position at December

Total asset 99,31 95,77: 78,47( 67,40¢ 60,05(

Long-term debt - 11,39¢ 2,52¢ 2,93¢ 4,28

@ Included two special items that combined to add $dillion to operating income, $695,000 to net imeoand $0.35 to net income per

diluted share
(b)

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT ’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF

OPERATIONS

Overview

Dividends on outstanding shares of common stoct ipathe 3%and 4" quarters at $.12 per share

The Company designs, develops, manufactures,aalslistributes products and components, priméoilyhe medical and healthcare indus
The Company markets components to other equipmantfacturers for incorporation in their productsl aells finished devices to physicie
hospitals, clinics and other treatment centers. Twenpanys medical products primarily serve the fluid detiyecardiovascular, al
ophthalmology markets. The Company’s other medécal nonmedical products include instrumentation and diaptes used in dialys
contract manufacturing and valves and inflationickes used in marine and aviation safety produlet2007 approximately 36 percent of

Company's sales were outside the United States.

The Company's products are used in a wide variegpplications by numerous customers. The Compaepunters competition in all of
markets and competes primarily on the basis ofybduality, price, engineering, customer service delivery time.
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The Company's strategy is to provide a broad detecf products in the areas of its expertise. Reteand development efforts are focuse
improving current products and developing higahgineered products that meet customer needs areltha potential for broad mar
applications and significant sales. Proposed nedymts may be subject to regulatory clearance prasjal prior to commercialization and
time period for introducing a new product to therke#place can be unpredictable. The Company alsasts on controlling costs by inves
in modern manufacturing technologies and contrglfiirchasing processes. The Company has been sfiddasconsistently generating ci
from operations and has used that cash to redubtedness, to fund capital expenditures, to rése stock and, starting in 2003, to
dividends.

The Company's strategic objective is to furtheragrde its position in its served markets by:

. Focusing on customer needs;

. Expanding existing product lines and developing pesducts;

. Maintaining a culture of controlling cost; and

. Preserving and fostering a collaborative, entregueial management structure.

For the year ended December 31, 2007, the Compported revenues of $88.5 million, income from oarihg operations of $14.0 millic
and net income of $14.0 million, up 9 percent, 8&pnt and 30 percent, respectively, from 2006.

Results of Operations

The Companys net income was $14.0 million, or $7.42 per basid $7.06 per diluted share, in 2007, comparecetincome of $10.8 milliol
or $5.82 per basic and $5.51 per diluted shar2p@6 and $9.0 million, or $4.99 per basic and $4&6diluted share, in 2005. Revenues
$88.5 million in 2007, compared with $81.0 millian2006 and $72.1 million in 2005. The 9 percewneraie increase in 2007 over 2006
the 12 percent revenue increase in 2006 over 2@08& generally attributable to higher sales volumes.

Annual revenues by product lines were as followdt{pusands):

2007 2006 2005
Fluid Delivery $ 28,74 % 25,80¢ % 20,447
Cardiovascula 23,571 23,29( 19,301
Ophthalmology 17,61« 13,74« 14,51«
Other 18,60« 18,177 17,821
Total $ 88,54( % 81,02( $ 72,08¢

The Companys cost of goods sold was $50.8 million in 2007, pared with $48.6 million in 2006 and $43.1 million2005. The 5 perce
increase in cost of goods sold for 2007 over 20@ibthe 13 percent increase in cost of goods sal@306 over 2005 were primarily relatec
the revenue increases shown above.

Gross profit in 2007 increased $5.4 million to ihillion, compared with $32.4 million in 2006 af@9.0 million in 2005. The Comparsy’
gross profit was 43 percent of revenues in 2007 Ahgercent of revenues in both 2006 and 2005.ifi¢rease in gross profit percentag
2007 from the prior year was primarily due to adi@ble shift in product mix and improvements in mfacturing efficiencies.

Operating expenses were $17.6 million in 2007, caneg with $18.1 million in 2006 and $16.3 milliom 2005. The decrease in opera
expenses in 2007 from 2006 was primarily relatethtospecial item described below, partially offegtincreases in selling (“Sellinggnc
general and administrative (“G&A"gxpenses. In 2007, the Company recorded a $1.4domitlenefit, net of expenses, related to a dis
settlement. This benefit was reflected as a redndti operating expenses. Selling expenses caursisérily of salaries, commissions and o
related expenses for sales and marketing persomaeketing, advertising and promotional expensedling expenses increased $286,00
2007, primarily as a result of increased outsid®ises, promotion and advertising expenses. G&Aeasps consist primarily of salaries
other related expenses of administrative, execudive financial personnel and outside professioaas.fln 2007, G&A expenses incree
$592,000, primarily attributable to a $329,000 dearelated to the termination of certain pensiang] increased compensation and be
costs partially offset by lower costs for outsi@evices. The increase in operating expenses in #0662005 was primarily related to increa
research and development (“R&D'3gelling and G&A expenses. R&D expenses increas®8,980 in 2006, primarily due to increased |
expenses, prototype supplies and compensation.cBsting expenses increased $430,000 in 2006, goifynas a result of increas
compensation costs, commissions, outside seryitesjotion and advertising. In 2006, G&A expensesaased $1.0 million, primarily due
outside services, taxes, compensation and berefitosts associated with the relocation to the faeility for a subsidiary of the Compal
Halkey-Roberts Corporation (“Halkey-Roberts”).
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The Companys operating income for 2007 was $20.2 million, caned with $14.3 million in 2006 and $12.7 milliam2005. The increase
gross profit and the decrease in operating expahesssibed above were the major contributors toogpherating income improvement in 2C
The previously mentioned increase in gross prditiplly offset by the previously mentioned increds operating expenses was the
contributor to the operating income improvemer2006.

Interest expense was $251,000 in 2007 compare@%8,800 in 2006 and $61,000 in 2005. The decrea@®07 was primarily related
decreased interest rates and reduced borrowintsldmeerest of $326,000 was capitalized in 2006rduthe construction of the new facility
Halkey-Roberts. After September 2007 the Compaiyrttaborrowings outstanding under its Credit Facili

Income tax expense in 2007 totaled $6.0 milliompared with $3.6 million in 2006 and $3.9 millian2005. The effective tax rates for 2(
2006 and 2005 were 30.0 percent, 25.2 percent @iTdp@rcent, respectively. Benefits from tax inoayg for domestic production, exports
R&D expenditures totaled $1,000,000 in 2007, $1,608 in 2006 and $642,000 in 2005. Benefits frorangfes in uncertain tax positic
totaled $168,000 in 2007. The lower effective taterin 2006 is primarily a result of a review amatdmentation of the ComparsyR&D ta»
credits for 2005 and priorear tax returns which indicated that the Compaag entitled to higher credits than had been clairibd Compan
expects the effective tax rate for 2008 to be axprately 32.0 percent.

The Company believes that 2008 revenues will bladrighan 2007 revenues and that the cost of gadsgross profit, operating income
net income will each be higher in 2008 than in 209&t income in 2008 will be negatively impactedayincrease in the Compasyihcomi
tax rate. The Company further believes that in 2088 Company will have continuing volume growth rimost of its product line
complemented by the introduction of new produatsl, will achieve continued growth in operating inaam

Discontinued Operations

During 2006 and 2005, the Company recorded a gai@b5,000 after tax, on the disposal of discorgthoperations related to the 1997 sa
its natural gas operations. These gains repres&®8dper basic share in each of 2006 and 200%&&lper diluted share in 2006, and $.0¢
diluted share in 2005. These amounts are net ofirectax expense of $85,000 in each of the two yddraler the terms of the 1997 agreen
the Company received contingent deferred paymen$2%0,000 each, befotex, from the purchaser in April 2006 and 2005. &¢tlitiona
payments were due under this agreement after 2006.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
The Company has a $25.0 million revolving credtility (the “Credit Facility”) with a money center bank to be utilized for theding of
operations and for major capital projects or adtjaiss, subject to certain limitations and restdns (see Note 4 of Notes to Consolidi

Financial Statements). Borrowings under the Creddility bear interest that is payable monthly @tday, 60-day or 9@ay LIBOR, as select
by the Company, plus one percent. At December @27 2the Company had $25.0 million available forbaing under the Credit Facility.
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At December 31, 2007, the Company had cash and easivalents of $3.5 million compared with $333,0800December 31, 2006. 1
Company had no outstanding borrowings under itgliCfeacility at December 31, 2007 and $11.4 millemnDecember 31, 2006. The Cn
Facility, which expires November 11, 2009, and rbayextended under certain circumstances, contarnsus restrictive covenants, none
which is expected to impact the Companiiquidity or capital resources. At December 30072, the Company was in compliance witt
financial covenants.

Cash flows from continuing operations generated B22llion in 2007 as compared to $12.6 million2@06. The primary contributors to t
increase were the improved operating results fer2007 period and improved working capital chariged07 as compared to working caf
changes in 2006. Cash provided by operating aiesvitonsisted primarily of net income adjusted dertain noneash items and changes
working capital items. Nowash items included depreciation and amortizatioth deferred income taxes. Working capital itemssesiac
primarily of accounts receivable, accounts payahkentories and other current assets and otheemtiabilities.

At December 31, 2007, the Company had working ehpit$25.7 million, including $3.5 million in castnd cash equivalents. The $2.0 mil
increase in working capital during 2007 was prifyarélated to an increase in cash offset by a degrén accounts receivable, and increas
accounts payables and accrued liabilities. Theegs® in cash was primarily related to amounts aviailfrom operations after the Comp
paid off its outstanding borrowings under its Ctdehcility in September 2007. The decrease in attsoreceivable was related to impro
collections as compared to 2006. The increase dnlatts payable was related to increased inventorghases. The 2007 increase in acc
liabilities was primarily related to accrued comgation.

Capital expenditures for property, plant and eq@phtotaled $7.9 million in 2007, compared with fillion in 2006 and $10.6 million
2005. The $7.9 million expended in 2007 was prilgdor the addition of machinery and equipment. t@¢ $20.9 million expended for 1
addition of property, plant and equipment durin@&0the Company expended $15.5 million toward @estruction of the new St. Peterst
facility for its HalkeyRoberts operation. Of the $10.6 million expendedtfe addition of property, plant and equipmentimyr2005, th
Company expended $4.5 million toward the constonctif the St. Petersburg facility for its HalkBypberts operation. The Company compl
the construction of the St. Petersburg facility amaved the HalkeyRoberts operation into the new facility during thed quarter of 2006. Tt
total cost of the new facility was $20.0 millioncathe cost of the land was $3.8 million. The Comypexrpects 2008 capital expenditure
increase slightly over the 2007 levels.

The Company decreased its outstanding borrowingsruthe Credit Facility by $11.4 million in 2007uiing 2006, the Company increaset
outstanding borrowings under the Credit Facility$8/9 million and repurchased 24,000 shares ofdatamon stock for approximately $
million.

The Company paid dividends totaling $1.7 milliod,4million and $1.1 million during 2007, 2006 a2d05, respectively. During 2007,

Company received $650,000 from the exercise oksbptions.
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The table below summarizes debt, lease and otmramtual obligations outstanding at December 80,72

Payments due by peric

2011 anc
Contractual Obligations Total 2008 2009- 201( thereafte!
(In thousands
Purchase Obligations $ 9,78¢ $ 9,732 $ 57 $ —
Total $ 9,78¢ % 9,732 $ 57 % —

The Company believes that its existing cash antl egsiivalents, cash flows from operations and laimgs available under the Compasay’
Credit Facility, supplemented, if necessary, wijuigy or debt financing, which the Company beliewasild be available, will be sufficient
fund the Company’s cash requirements for at |destdreseeable future.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements
The Company has no off-balance sheet financinghgeiments.
Impact of Inflation

The Company experiences the effects of inflatiamarily in the prices it pays for labor, materialsd services. Over the last three years
Company has experienced the effects of moderalationf in these costs. At times, the Company hanleble to offset a portion of th
increased costs by increasing the sales pricets girdducts. However, competitive pressures havealmwved for full recovery of these ¢
increases.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standardsr8¢FASB) issued Interpretation No. 48 (“FIN 48xcounting for Uncertainty in Incor
Taxes—An interpretation of FASB Statement No.Il%e Interpretation clarifies the accounting facartainty in income taxes recognize:
an enterprises financial statements and prescribes a recogriti@shold and measurement attributes of incom@aaitions taken or expec:
to be taken on a tax return. Under FIN 48, the ichpéan uncertain tax position taken or expectelde taken on an income tax return mut
recognized in the financial statements at the Ergenount that is more-likely-tharet to be sustained upon audit by the relevaning
authority. An uncertain income tax position willtrime recognized in the financial statements uritéssmore-likely-thanrot of being sustaine
The Company adopted FIN 48 on January 1, 2007.

On December 31, 2006, the Company adopted SFASLBR). "Employers' Accounting for Defined Benefit Biem and Other Postretirem
Plans, an amendment of FASB Statements No. 871@®8,and 132(R)" ("SFAS 158"). The funded statushef Companys pension plan
recorded as a noturrent asset and all unrecognized losses, netaf dre recorded as accumulated other comprehetssge withir
stockholders’ equity. As required by SFAS 158, lssfor prior periods were not restated.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 153ir WValue Measurements” (“SFAS 157{yhich provides guidance for measuring the
value of assets and liabilities, as well as reguéngpanded disclosures about fair value measursm®@RAS 157 indicates that fair value shi
be determined based on the assumptions marketpéatieipants would use in pricing the asset oriligh and provides additional guidelines
consider in determining the marketssed measurement. The Company is required to &fod$ 157 effective January 1, 2008. The Com
believes that SFAS 157 will not result in a matecteange to its financial condition, results of m®ns, or cash flow.
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In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS 159, “Thie Walue Option for Financial Assets and Finandigbilities - Including an amendme
of FASB Statement No. 115" (“SFAS 159hich allows measurement at fair value of eligibleancial assets and liabilities that are
otherwise measured at fair value. If the fair ealption for an eligible item is elected, unreaizgins and losses for that item are t
reported in current earnings at each subsequeaottieg date. SFAS 159 also establishes presentatid disclosure requirements design¢
draw comparison between the different measuremiribides the Company elects for similar types s$eds and liabilities. SFAS 15¢
effective for fiscal years beginning after Novemt&r 2007. The Company believes that SFAS 159matlresult in a material change tc
financial condition, results of operations, or céslw.

From time to time, new accounting pronouncemenpdicgble to the Company are issued by the FASBtloerostandards setting bodies, wi
the Company will adopt as of the specified effextdate. Unless otherwise discussed, the Compaigvbslthe impact of recently issi
standards that are not yet effective will not haveaterial impact on its consolidated financialesteents upon adoption.

Critical Accounting Policies

The discussion and analysis of the Company’s fildmondition and results of operations are basethe Company consolidated financi
statements, which have been prepared in accordaitceaccounting principles generally accepted ia thnited States of America. In -
preparation of these financial statements, the Gomypnakes estimates and assumptions that affecefioeted amounts of assets, liabilit
revenues and expenses, and related disclosuresmfigent assets and liabilities. The Company kebehe following discussion addresses
Company's most critical accounting policies andhestes, which are those that are most importatiegportrayal of the Company's finan
condition and results and require management's diffisult, subjective and complex judgments, ofeena result of the need to make estin
about the effect of matters that are inherentlyeutragn. Actual results could differ significantigofn those estimates under different assumg
and conditions.

During 2007, the Company accrued for legal coste@ated with certain litigation. The Company betie these accruals are adequate to
the legal fees and expenses associated with litgahese matters. However, the time and cost redub litigate these matters as well as
outcomes of the proceedings may vary from whatibmpany has projected.

The Company maintains an allowance for doubtfubaots to reflect estimated losses resulting froenfttilure of customers to make requ
payments. On an ongoing basis, the collectibiityaccounts receivable is assessed based upomidasteollection trends, current econol
factors and the assessment of the collectibilityspécific accounts. The Company evaluates thesa@dlility of specific accounts a
determines when to grant credit to its customemsgua combination of factors, including the agetlté outstanding balances, evaluatio
customers’current and past financial condition, recent payirastory, current economic environment, and distuss with appropria
Company personnel and with the customers diredlycounts are written off when it is determined tieeeivable will not be collected.
circumstance change, the Company’s estimates afdaiectibility of amounts could be changed by aenial amount.

The Company determines inventory valuation resebasgd on a combination of factors. In circumstanekere the Company is aware
specific problem in the valuation of a certain itearspecific reserve is recorded to reduce the iteits net realizable value. The Company
recognizes reserves based on the actual usageentreistory and projected usage in the near-tdroiccumstances change (e.g., lower-than-
expected or higher-than-expected usage), estirotége net realizable value could be materially atied.

-21-




Table of Contents

The Company is required to estimate its provisionificome taxes in each of the jurisdictions in abhit operates. This process invol
estimating its actual current tax exposure, incigdassessing the risks associated with tax audgsther with assessing temporary differe
resulting from the different treatment of items fax and accounting purposes. These differencest iesdeferred tax assets and liabilit
which are included within the balance sheet. Then@any assesses the likelihood that its deferrecasmets will be recovered from fut
taxable income and to the extent it believes thabvery is more likely than not, does not estabdishaluation allowance. In the event-
actual results differ from these estimates, theipion for income taxes could be materially impacte

Pension plan benefits are expensed as applicaljdogees earn benefits. The recognition of expemsegnificantly impacted by estima
made by management such as discount rates usealue gertain liabilities and expected return onetsssThe Company uses thipdsty
specialists to assist management in appropriatelgsaring the expense associated with pension @aefits. In the event that actual res
differ from these estimates, pension plan expecsekl be materially impacted

The Company assesses the impairment of its limed-identifiable assets, excluding goodwill whichtested for impairment pursuant to Sk
No. 142 ,“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” (“SFAS Nal2l'), as explained below, whenever events or changescanestances indics
that the carrying value may not be recoverables Taview is based upon projections of anticipatgdré cash flows. While the Comps
believes that its estimates of future cash flows mrasonable, different assumptions regarding sasih flows or future changes in
Company’s business plan could materially affeceitaluations. No such changes are anticipatedsatitie.

The Company assesses goodwill for impairment putsisaSFAS No. 142 which requires that goodwillassessed whenever events or che
in circumstances indicate that the carrying valay mot be recoverable, or, at a minimum, on an ahpasis by applying a fair value test.

Forward-looking Statements

The statements in this Management’s Discussionfaralysis and elsewhere in this annual report omFd0-K that are forwartboking are
based upon current expectations, and actual regultsture events may differ materially. Thereforhe inclusion of such forwarkboking
information should not be regarded as a representaly the Company that the objectives or planshef Company will be achieved. Si
statements include, but are not limited to, the Gany’s expectations regarding future revenues, costoflg sold, gross profit, operat
income, net income, research and development egpe608 effective tax rate, capital expenditurelle availability of equity and de
financing and the Company’s ability to meet itstcesquirements for the foreseeable future. Words s “anticipates,” “believes,” “intends,”
“expects,” “should” and variations of such wordsiaimilar expressions are intended to identify starivard-looking statements. Forward-
looking statements contained herein involve numerigks and uncertainties, and there are a nunflfactors that could cause actual resul
future events to differ materially, including, dt limited to, the following: changing economicarket and business conditions; acts of wi
terrorism; the effects of governmental regulatitve impact of competition and new technologiéswer-thananticipated introduction of ne
products or implementation of marketing strategiegplementation of new manufacturing processesmyplémentation of new informati
systems; the Comparsyability to protect its intellectual property; clgges in the prices of raw materials; changes iyrbmix; intellectue
property and product liability claims and produetalls; the ability to attract and retain quatifipersonnel and the loss of any signifi
customers. In addition, assumptions relating togetidg, marketing, product development and othemagament decisions are subjectiv
many respects and thus susceptible to interpresatand periodic review which may cause the Companglter its marketing, capi
expenditures or other budgets, which in turn mégcathe Company’s results of operations and firereondition.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK

Foreign Exchange Ris

The Company is not exposed to material fluctuatiomsurrency exchange rates because the paymemts thhe Company internation:
customers are primarily received in United Stataads.

Principal andInterest Rate Risk

The Company has an investment portfolio that ie#ted with a major financial institution in a mupal money market fund that is AAA rat
The primary objective of the Compagyinvestment activities is to preserve principalilgghmaximizing the income it receives from
investments without significantly increasing riska general, the primary exposure to market rislnisrest rate sensitivity. This means th
change in prevailing interest rates may cause #hegevof and the return on the investment to flugtugAlthough the returns on money ma
funds fluctuate with changes in interest rates pifigcipal should not generally be subject to marksk.

Recently, there has been concern in the credit esiregarding the value of a variety of mortghgeked securities and the resultant effe
various securities markets. The Company believassith cash, cash equivalents, and marketableifeswto not have significant risk of defe
or illiquidity. However, the Company cannot provicemplete assurance that its investments will mosibject to adverse changes in m:
value.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Atrion Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of Atrion Corporation as of December28)7 and 2006, and the rele
consolidated statements of income, changes in lstdd&rs’equity and comprehensive income, and cash flowsdoh of the three years in
period ended December 31, 200These financial statements are the responsibifithe Company’s managementOur responsibility is t
express an opinion on these financial statemerssdoan our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstas of the Public Company Accounting OversightuBlo(United States). Thos¢
standards require that we plan and perform thet aodibtain reasonable assurance about whethdimidugcial statements are free of mate
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, ewidesupporting the amounts and disclosures inittadial statements.An
audit also includes assessing the accounting piegiused and significant estimates made by marnagerms well as evaluating the ove
financial statement presentatioWe believe that our audits provide a reasonablis basour opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referrea@lbove present fairly, in all material respedis, financial position of Atrion Corporation as
December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the results apigsations and its cash flows for each of the tlyesers in the period ended Decembe
2007 in conformity with accounting principles geslgr accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated findrstégements, effective January 1, 2007, the Compdopted Financial Accounting Stand:
Board Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Un@gnty in Income Taxes”As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated findrat@ement:
effective January 1, 2006 the Company adopted ithegions of Statement of Financial Accounting Skamls No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-
Based Payment.Also as discussed in Note 1 to the consolidategihfifal statements, effective December 31, 2006Ctrapany adopted t
provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting re@rds No. 158, “EmployersAccounting for Defined Benefit Pension and o
Postretirement Plans.”

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of formangopinion on the basic consolidated financialestegnts taken as a whole. Schedule
presented for the purposes of additional analysisig not a required part of the basic consolidéitezhcial statements. This schedule has
subjected to the auditing procedures applied iratlndit of the basic consolidated financial statet:i@md, in our opinion, is fairly stated in
material respects in relation to the basic conatdid financial statements taken as a whole.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight BogdUnited States), Atric
Corporation’s internal control over financial refiog as of December 31, 2007, based on criteriabished ininternal Control—ntegratec
Frameworkissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatadrtee Treadway Commission (COS@nd our report dated March 13, 2
expressed an unqualified opinion.

/s/ Grant Thornton LLP
Dallas, Texas
March 13, 2008
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

For the year ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

2007 2006 2005
(In thousands, except per share amot

Revenue! 88,54( $ 81,02( $ 72,08
Cost of Goods Sol 50,77: 48,57 43,11¢
Gross Profil 37,76¢ 32,44¢ 28,97(
Operating Expense

Selling 6,35: 6,067 5,631

General and administratiy 9,841 9,24¢ 8,23¢

Dispute resolutiol (1,399 - --

Research and developm 2,77¢ 2,797 2,39¢

17,57 18,11( 16,27:

Operating Incomu 20,19¢ 14,33¢ 12,69¢
Interest Income 57 91 37
Interest Expens (252) (25%) (62)
Other Income (Expense), r -- (4 1C
Income from Continuing Operations before Providimnincome Taxe: 20,00: 14,17 12,68
Provision for Income Taxe (5,995 (3,572) (3,897
Income from Continuing Operatiol 14,00¢ 10,60( 8,79:
Gain on Disposal of Discontinued Operations, ndtg -- 165 165
Net Income 14,00¢ $ 10,76¢ $ 8,95¢
Income Per Basic Shar

Continuing operation 74z $ 57: $ 4.9C

Discontinued operatior -- .0¢ .0¢
Net Income Per Basic She 74z % 582 $ 4.9¢
Weighted Average Basic Shares Outstan 1,88 1,85] 1,79¢
Income Per Diluted Shar

Continuing operation 7.06 $ 54 $ 4.57

Discontinued operatior -- .08 .0¢
Net Income Per Diluted Sha 7.06 $ 551 $ 4.6€
Weighted Average Diluted Shares Outstanc 1,98t 1,95¢ 1,92«
Dividends Per Common She 88 $ 74 $ .62

The accompanying notes are an integral part obteegements.




Table of Contents

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
As of December 31, 2007 and 2006

Assets: 2007 2006

(In thousands

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalel $ 3531 $ 33¢

Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doub#ittounts of $32 and $149 in 2007 and 20086,
respectively 9,601 10,54
Inventories 17,38 17,11t
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 1,48: 1,53(
Deferred income taxe 607 1,13¢
Total Current Asset 32,60¢ 30,65¢
Property, Plant and Equipme 89,73¢ 82,53¢
Less accumulated depreciation and amortize 35,68¢ 31,09«
54,05( 51,44

Other Assets and Deferred Charc
Patents and licenses, net of accumulated amodizafi$9,507 and $9,195 in 2007 and 2(

respectively 2,011 2,26¢
Goodwill 9,73( 9,73(
Other 912 1,67¢
12,65 13,67:

Total Assets $ 99,31 $ 95,77:

The accompanying notes are an integral part obtettements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

As of December 31, 2007 and 2006

Liabilities and Stockholde’ Equity:

2007

2006

Current Liabilities:

(In thousands

Accounts payabl $ 3,53¢ $ 3,38
Accrued liabilities 2,81¢ 2,65¢
Accrued income and other tax 51¢ 882
Total Current Liabilities 6,86¢ 6,92:
Line of credit -- 11,39¢
Other Liabilities and Deferred Credi
Deferred income taxe 5,89¢ 5,07¢
Other 1,117 1,481
7,007 6,55¢
Total Liabilities 13,87: 24,87
Commitments and Contingenci
Stockholder Equity:
Common stock, par value $.10 per share, authofi@g@D0 shares, issued 3,420 sh: 34z 34z
Additional paic-in capital 15,79( 14,14(
Accumulated other comprehensive I (486 (892
Retained earning 104,02: 91,70¢
Treasury shares, 1,509 shares in 2007 and 1,546ssina2006, at co: (34,225 (34,403
Total Stockholder' Equity 85,44 70,89:
Total Liabilities and Stockholde’ Equity $ 99,31 $ 95,77.

The accompanying notes are an integral part obtettements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

2007 2006 2005
(In thousands
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Net income $ 14,00¢ $ 10,76¢ 8,95¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashkigea by operating activitie:
Gain on disposal of discontinued operati - (165) (165)
Depreciation and amortizatic 5,534 5,00¢ 5,38¢
Deferred income taxe 1,13¢ 692 50C
Tax benefit related to stock optio - - 1,16¢
Stoclk-based compensatic 36¢ 11€ --
Pension charg 31C - --
Other 35 10 10
21,38 16,42« 15,86(
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts receivabl 96¢ (2,250 (703)
Inventories (272) 59(C (3,6972)
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 47 (69¢) 19¢
Other no-current asset 1,02( (119 (2,869)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit 317 (1,08%) (18)
Accrued income and other tax 56E (21¢€) (223)
Other nol-current liabilities (1,329 4 337
Net cash provided by continuing operatis 22,70¢ 12,64¢ 9,89
Net cash provided by discontinued operations (1$d -- 165 165
22,70¢ 12,81 10,05¢
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Property, plant and equipment additic (7,899 (20,889 (10,569
Property, plant and equipment sg -- 3 21
(7,899 (20,88¢) (10,549
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Line of credit advance 19,42¢ 38,18¢ 25,59¢
Line of credit repayment (30,825 (29,31¢) (26,00¢)
Exercise of stock optior 65C 1,22¢ 2,28t
Purchase of treasury sto - (1,599 --
Tax benefit related to stock optio 80& 752 --
Dividends paic (1,670 (1,375 (1,119
(11,619 7,881 75¢
Net change in cash and cash equivalen 3,19¢ (192) 27C
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of ye: 33¢ 52E 25k
Cash and cash equivalents, end of ye: $ 3,531 $ 33¢ 52¢
Cash paid for:
Interest (net of capitalizatiol $ 31z $ 19¢ 62
Income taxe: 3,48 3,27 2,50¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part obtettements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDEREQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

(In thousands)

Common Stocl

Treasury Stocl

Additional | Accumulated Othe
Shares Paid-in Comprehensive | Retainec
Outstandil| Amount Shares Amount Capital Loss Earnings Total

Balances, January 1, 20 1,71¢| $ 34z 1,7011 $ (34,23)| $ 10,01 -|$ 7447¢]$ 50,60
Net income 8,95¢ 8,95¢
Tax benefit frorr
exercise of
stock option: 1,16¢ 1,16¢
Exercise of stoc
options 11¢% (115) 95¢ 1,327 2,28t
Dividends (1,119 (1,119

Balances, December 31,

2005 1,83¢ 34z 1,58¢ (33,279 12,50¢ - 82,31¢ 61,89¢
Net income 10,76¢ 10,76¢
Tax benefit frorr
exercise of
stock option: 752 752
Stock options an
restricted stoc 66 (66) 597 88C 1,47
Shares surrendered
option exercise 2 2 (133) (133
Purchase of treasury
stock (24) 24 (1,599 (1,599
Dividends (1,375) (1,375
Adjustment for initial
application of SFAS
158, net of tax (Notes
and 11) (892) (892)

Balances, December 31,

2006 1,87¢ 342 1,54¢ (34,409 14,14(| $ (892) 91,70¢ 70,89t
Components of
comprehensive incom
Net income 14,00¢ 14,00¢
Actuarial gain on
pension plan, net of
income taxes of $11 20t 20t
Recognition of pensio
plan curtailment gain
and settlement loss, n
of income taxes of
$109 201 201
Total comprehensiv
income 40¢€ 14,00¢ 14,41:
Tax benefit fromr
exercise of
stock option: 80¢% 80¢%
Stock options an
restricted stoc 39 (39) 382 84t 1,227
Shares surrendered
option exercise (2) 2 (204) (204)
Dividends (1,67€) (1,67€)
Adjustment for initial
application of FIN 48
(Note 1) (17) (17)

Balances, December 31,

2007 1911] $ 342 150¢1 $ (34,225 $ 15,79(] $ (486)] $ 104,02:| $ 85,44:




The accompanying notes are an integral part ofsthitement .
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1)

Atrion Corporation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Atrion Corporation (“Atrion”) and its subsidiariegollectively, the “Company”)design, develop, manufacture, sell and distri
products primarily for the medical and healthcanduistry. The Company markets its products throughibe United States a
internationally. The Company’customers include hospitals, distributors, amgomanufacturers. The principal subsidiaries tfoly
through which these operations are conducted am@rAtMedical Products, Inc. (“Atrion Medical Prodsq, Halkey-Robert:
Corporation (“Halkey-Roberts”) and Quest Medicak.l(“Quest Medical”).

Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include tw@ants of Atrion and its subsidiaries. All intengpany transactions and balances |
been eliminated in consolidation.

Fair Value
The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalaot®unts receivable and accounts payable approxifaiatvalue due to the shademr
nature of these items. The carrying amount of dpptoximates fair value as the interest ratee$ tb market rates.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymvith accounting principles generally acceptedthie United States of Ameri
requires management to make estimates and assasptiat affect the reported amounts of assets iabdities and disclosures
contingent assets and liabilities at the datesheffinancial statements and the reported amouméwenues and expenses during
reporting periods. Actual results could differ fréhose estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash equivalents include cash on hand and in thie #awell as securities with original maturitié90 days or less.

Trade Receivables

Trade accounts receivable are recorded at thenatigiales price to the customer. The Company m@iamtan allowance for doubt
accounts to reflect estimated losses resulting ftbe failure of customers to make required payme@®s an ongoing basis, !
collectibility of accounts receivable is assessaseld upon historical collection trends, currennecoic factors and the assessment ¢
collectibility of specific accounts. The Compansakiates the collectibility of specific accountslatetermines when to grant credit tc
customers using a combination of factors, including age of the outstanding balances, evaluationusfomers’current and pa
financial condition, recent payment history, cutrensonomic environment, and discussions with apjeite Company personnel ¢
with the customers directly. Accounts are writtéhwhen it is determined the receivable will net ¢ollected.

Accounts Payable

The Company reflects disbursements as trade accq@ay@ble until such time as payments are preseatdte bank for payment.
December 31, 2007 and 2006, disbursements totajfipgoximately $ 744,000 and $ 522,000, respectivedyl not been presented
payment to the bank.
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Atrion Corporation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (contied)

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (inicigdnaterials, direct labor and applicable overheadmarket. Cost is determined
using the first-in, first-out method. The followitgble details the major components of inventamtliousands):

December 31

2007 2006
Raw materials $ 7452 $ 7,19¢
Work in proces: 4,51z 4,08¢
Finished good 5,422 5,831
Total inventories $ 17,387 $ 17,11t

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for deferred income taxesintil Statement of Financial Accounting Standards. N9 (“SFAS 109,
Accounting for Income Taxe$SFAS 109 requires the asset and liability metlhdtereby deferred tax assets and liabilities ategrize:
based on the tax effects of temporary differeneaben the financial statement and the tax basassafts and liabilities, as measure
current enacted tax rates. When appropriate thep@ognevaluates the need for a valuation allowanceduce deferred tax.

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standardar8@dFASB) issued Interpretation No. 48 (“FIN 48A;counting for Uncertainty
Income Taxes—An interpretation of FASB StatemenflB®. The Interpretation clarifies the accounting facertainty in income tax
recognized in an enterprisefinancial statements and prescribes a recognttioeshold and measurement attributes of incom
positions taken or expected to be taken on a taxrreUnder FIN 48, the impact of an uncertain pesition taken or expected to
taken on an income tax return must be recognizetthénfinancial statements at the largest amourttithanore-likely-thamot to bt
sustained upon audit by the relevant taxing autyiofin uncertain income tax position will not beognized in the financial stateme
unless it is more likely than not of being sustdine

The Company adopted FIN 48 on January 1, 2007. A®salt of the adoption, current income taxes pkyatecreased |
$942,000, unrecognized tax benefits of $959,00@wecorded as “Other non-current liabilitiesid retained earnings were reduce
$17,000 on the consolidated balance sheet, withetampact to the consolidated statement of incoffre unrecognized tax bene
were comprised of uncertain tax positions that wanlpact the effective tax rate if recognized.

The unrecognized tax benefits mentioned above 59 $®0 included an aggregate $57,000 of intergst@se. Interest was computec
the difference between the tax position recognireatcordance with FIN 48 and the amount previotmken or expected to be takel
the tax returns. Upon adoption of FIN 48, the Conypalected an accounting policy to classify inteegense on underpayment:
income taxes and accrued penalties related to agnézed tax benefits in the income tax provisionoiPto the adoption of FIN 48, t
Companys policy was to classify interest expense on uralgnents of income taxes as interest expense acdldgsify penalties as
operating expense in arriving at pretax income.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at costdapdeciated using the straighte method over the estimated useful lives ofrilatec
assets. Expenditures for repairs and maintenareelarged to expense as incurred. The followingetabpresents a summary
property, plant and equipment at original costlfiousands):

December 31 Useful
2007 2006 Lives
Land $ 526( $ 5,26( —
Buildings 29,17 28,94* 3C-40 yrs
Machinery and equipmel 55,30¢ 48,33 3-10 yre
Total property, plant and equipme $ 89,73t $ 82,53¢

Depreciation expense of $5,222,000, $4,685,000%4865,000 was recorded for the years ended DeaeBihe007, 2006 and 20!
respectively.

Capitalized interest related to the constructiom afew facility at HalkeyRoberts in the amount of $325,839 and $26,850 wesrde:
during 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Patents and Licenses

Cost for patents and licenses acquired is detednittieacquisition date. Patents and licenses aretae over the useful lives of t
individual patents and licenses, which are frono7.9 years. Patents and licenses are reviewedrfpairment whenever events
changes in circumstances indicate that the caringunt of the asset may not be recoverable.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of cost over threvidue of tangible and identifiable intangible mstsets acquired. Annual impairrr
testing for goodwill is done using a fair valbaesed test. Goodwill is also reviewed periodicédly impairment whenever events
changes in circumstances indicate a change in valag have occurred. The Company has identifiedetlneporting units whe
goodwill was recorded for purposes of testing godidmpairment annually: (1) Atrion Medical Prodsc{2) HalkeyRoberts and (.
Quest Medical. The carrying amount for goodwilkeich of the three years ended December 31, 2008, &hd 2005 was $9,730,000.

Current Accrued Liabilities
The items comprising current accrued liabilities as follows (in thousands):

December 31

2007 2006
Accrued payroll and related expen $ 1941 $ 1,272
Accrued vacatiol 167 227
Accrued professional fet 251 567
Other accrued liabilitie 457 58¢
Total accrued liabilitie: $ 2,81 $ 2,65¢
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Revenues

The Company recognizes revenue when its produetstapped to its customers and distributors, pexvidn arrangement exists, the
is fixed and determinable and collectibility is seaably assured. All risks and rewards of ownerphigs to the customer upon shipmr
Net sales represent gross sales invoiced to custoress certain related charges, including distueturns and other allowanc
Revenues are recorded exclusive of sales and sitaidas. Returns, discounts and other allowances been insignificant historically.

Shipping and Handling Policy
Shipping and handling fees charged to customersepi@ted as revenue and all shipping and handlisgs incurred related to prodt
sold are reported as cost of goods sold.

Research and Development Costs
Research and development costs relating to thelaf@went of new products and improvements of exjspinoducts are expensec
incurred.

Advertising

Advertising production costs are expensed as iedurMedia for print placement costs are expensethé period the advertisi
appears. Total advertising expenses were approeiyn®277,000, $198,000 and $219,000 for the yeaded December 31, 2007, 2
and 2005, respectively.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company has stoddased compensation plans covering certain of fises§, directors and key employees. As explaimedeitail ir
Note 8, the Company accounts for std@sed compensation utilizing the fair value rectigmiprovisions of SFAS No. 123 (revis
2004), “Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS No. 123R").

Pension Plan

Pension plan benefits are expensed as applicabpdogees earn benefits. The recognition of expemsesgnificantly impacted
estimates made by management such as discountussdgo value certain liabilities and expectedrrebn assets. The Company 1
third-party specialists to assist management in@pfately measuring the expense associated witkipe plan benefits.

On December 31, 2006, the Company adopted SFAS 188, "Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Bem and Othe
Postretirement Plans, an amendment of FASB Statisnm 87, 88, 106 and 132(R)" ("SFAS 158"). Afuidher described in Note !
the funded status of the Company’s pension plaeaderded as a noturrent asset and all unrecognized losses, netxphte recorded
accumulated other comprehensive loss within stdddns’ equity. As required by SFAS 158, resultsgaor periods were not restated.

The incremental effects of applying SFAS 158 o litems in the consolidated balance sheet at DemeBth 2006 were as follo
(amounts in thousands):

Before After
Application Adjustments  Application
Other Assets and Deferred Charges: O $ 3,051 $ 1,379 $ 1,67¢
Deferred income tax liabilit 5,55¢ (481) 5,07¢
Accumulated other comprehensive I - (892) (892
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Comprehensive Income
Comprehensive income includes net income plus atberprehensive income, which for the Company cts&ié the amortization
unrecognized pension gains, and recognition ofgyaia result of pension plan curtailment andesettht transactions.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 155ir Walue Measurements” (“SFAS 157%Which provides guidance for measul
the fair value of assets and liabilities, as wsllrequires expanded disclosures about fair valuesorements. SFAS 157 indicates
fair value should be determined based on the agsumspmarketplace participants would use in pridimg asset or liability, and provic
additional guidelines to consider in determining tharketbased measurement. The Company is required to &fhE 157 effectiv
January 1, 2008. The Company believes that SFASMISnot result in a material change to its fic&l condition, results of operatio
or cash flow.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS 159, “The Walue Option for Financial Assets and Finandi#dbilities - Including a1
amendment of FASB Statement No. 115" (“SFAS 15@hich allows measurement at fair value of eligifitencial assets and liabiliti
that are not otherwise measured at fair valughdffair value option for an eligible item is ekedf unrealized gains and losses for
item are to be reported in current earnings at eadisequent reporting date. SFAS 159 also edteklipresentation and disclos
requirements designed to draw comparison betweenlitferent measurement attributes the Companytsefec similar types of ass:
and liabilities. SFAS 159 is effective for fiscaars beginning after November 15, 2007. The Compalieves that SFAS 159 will r
result in a material change to its financial coiogit results of operations, or cash flow.

From time to time, new accounting pronouncemensicgble to the Company are issued by the FASBtloerostandards setting bod
which the Company will adopt as of the specifieiéetive date. Unless otherwise discussed, the Coynbelieves the impact of recer
issued standards that are not yet effective willhave a material impact on its consolidated finarstatements upon adoption.

(2) Patents and License:
Purchased patents and licenses paid for the usthef entitiespatents are amortized over the useful life of theept or license. Pate
and licenses are as follows (dollars in thousands):
December 31, 200 December 31, 200
Weighted Weighted
Average Origina Average Origing

Life (years) Gross Carrying Amou Accumulated Amortizatic  Life (years) Gross Carrying Amou Accumulated Amortizatic

1474 $ 11,51¢ $ 9,507 1472 $ 11,45¢ $ 9,19¢

Aggregate amortization expense for patents andsieg was $312,000 for 2007, $318,000 for 2006 &r@P#,000 for 2005. Estimal
future amortization expense for each of the yeairéosth below ending December 31, is as followstliousands):

2008 $ 29€
2009 $ 27¢
2010 $ 26¢
2011 $ 265
2012 $ 154
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Discontinued Operations

During 2006 and 2005, the Company recorded a gah1@5,000 after tax, on the disposal of discorgthoperations related to the 1'
sale of its natural gas operations. These amaretsiet of income tax expense of $85,000 in eacheofwo years. Under the term:
the 1997 agreement, the Company received contirdggfatred payments of $250,000 each, befaxefrom the purchaser in April 20
and 2005. No additional payments were due undertireement after 2006 and thus there was norgegmded in 2007.

Line of Credit

The Company has a revolving credit facility (“CreBacility”) with a money center bank. Under the Credit Fagcilinge Company at
certain of its subsidiaries have a line of credi$®5 million which is secured by substantially mentories, equipment and accol
receivable of the Company. Interest under the i€redcility is assessed at 30-day, 60-day ord8@-LIBOR, as selected by 1
Company, plus one percent (6.09 percent at DeceB8he2007) and is payable monthly. At December2RD7, the line of credit w
completely paid off, and at December 31, 2006,&heas $11.4 million outstanding under the line refdit. The Credit Facility expir
November 12, 2009 and may be extended under caitainmstances. At any time during the term, tioenany may convert any or
outstanding amounts under the Credit Facility teran loan with a maturity of two years. The Compargbility to borrow funds und
the Credit Facility from time to time is contingeant meeting certain covenants in the loan agreemnt@nimost restrictive of which is 1
ratio of total debt to earnings before interestome tax, depreciation and amortization. At Deceni, 2007, the Company was
compliance with all financial covenants.

Income Taxes
The items comprising income tax expense for comoperations are as follows (in thousands):

Year ended December 31

2007 2006 2005

Current — Federal $ 4,60: $ 2,70t 3 3,18¢
— State 34t 23C 257

4,94¢ 2,93¢ 3,44¢

Deferred— Federal 1,19( 607 40¢€
— State 25 30 37

1,21¢ 637 44E

Unrecognized tax bene (16€) -- --
Total income tax expen: $ 599t $ 3,57: $ 3,891
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Temporary differences and carryforwards which hgiven rise to deferred income tax assets and iiegsilas of December 31, 2007 and
2006 are as follows (in thousands):

2007 2006
Deferred tax assets
Benefit plans $ 331 $ 62¢
Inventories 45¢€ 44¢
Other 93 194
Total deferred tax assets $ 88C $ 1,26¢
Deferred tax liabilities:
Property, plant and equipme $ 4,657 $ 4,25¢
Pension: 201 14z
Patents and goodwiill 1,311 80:
Total deferred tax liabilities $ 6,16¢ $ 5,20¢
Net deferred tax liabilit $ 528¢ $ 3,93¢
Balance Sheet classification
Non-current deferred income tax liabili $ 589 $ 5,07¢
Current deferred income tax as 607 1,13¢
Net deferred tax liabilit $ 528¢ $ 3,93¢

Total income tax expense for continuing operatidiffers from the amount that would be provided Ipplging the statutory fedel
income tax rate to pretax earnings as illustratddwb (in thousands):

Year ended December 31

2007 2006 2005

Income tax expense at the statutory federal inclaeate $ 7,03C $ 4960 $ 4,31:
Increase (decrease) resulting frc

State income taxe 24C 21C 21C

R&D credit (58¢€) (1,327 (100)

Foreign sales bene (66) (154) (434

Section 199 manufacturing deducti (34¢) (227 (10¢)

Net change in uncertain tax positic (16€) - --

Other, ne (107) 5 10
Total income tax expen: $ 599t $ 357: $ 3,891

The 2006 amount for R&D credit includes $1,022,880resenting the results of a review and documientaf the Companyg R&D ta>
credits for 2005 and prigrear tax returns. This review indicated that thenpany was entitled to higher credits than had l@imec
and amended returns were filed.
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A reconciliation of the beginning and ending baksof the total amounts of gross unrecognized ¢grefits as required by FIN 48 is as
follows (in thousands):

Gross unrecognized tax benefits at January 1, $ 95¢
Increases in tax positions for prior ye 52
Increases in tax positions for current y 17¢
Lapse in statute of limitatior (399
Gross unrecognized tax benefits at December 37 $ 791

The unrecognized tax benefits, which were compriskdncertain tax positions, would impact the efffex tax rate if recognize
Unrecognized tax benefits that are affected bytatof limitation that expire within the next 12nths are immaterial.

The Company and its subsidiaries are subject to féderal income tax as well as to income tax oftiple state jurisdictions. Ti
Company has concluded all U.S. federal income tatters for years through 2003. In October 2007 Jtiternal Revenue Service (IF
began examining certain of the CompanyJ.S. Federal income tax returns for 2005. To,daieroposed adjustments have been is
All material state and local income tax mattersehbgen concluded for years through 2003.

The Company recognizes interest and penaltiesnyf eelated to unrecognized tax benefits in incaape expense. The liability f
unrecognized tax benefits included accrued inteye$60,000 and $57,000 at December 31, 2007 amabdw 1, 2007, respectively. 1
expense for the year ended December 31, 2007 ieslad interest benefit of $7,000, which is comprisiean interest benefit of $40,(
resulting from the expiration of the statutes ofitations referred to above, and interest expen§8®,000 on unrecognized tax bene
for prior years.

(6) Stockholders Equity

The Board of Directors of the Company has at varitmes authorized repurchases of Company stocpénmarket or negotiate
transactions at such times and at such prices asgament may from time to time decide. No repurebagere made in 2007 or
2005. In 2006, the Company repurchased 24,00@&stetra price of $66.41 per share. As of DecerBbe007, authorization for t
repurchase of up to 68,100 additional shares rezdain

The Company has increased its quarterly cash didiggayments in September of each of the past ffeaes. The quarterly dividend v
increased from $.14 per share to $.17 per sha8eptember of 2005, to $.20 per share in Septenfbh20@6 and to $.24 per share
September of 2007.

The Company has a Rights Plan, which is intendeatdtect the interests of stockholders in the ewéiat hostile attempt to take over

Company. The rights, which are not presently égalide and do not have any voting powers, repreentight of the Company’
stockholders to purchase at a substantial discoper the occurrence of certain events, sharesrofiton stock of the Company or of

acquiring company involved in a business combimatigth the Company. This plan, which was adoptedigust of 2006, expires

August of 2016.
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Income Per Share
The following is the computation for basic and t#diincome per share from continuing operations:

Year ended December 31

2007 2006 2005
(In thousands, except per share amot
Income from continuing operatiol $ 14,00¢ $ 10,60( $ 8,79:¢
Weighted average basic shares outstan 1,887 1,851 1,794
Add: Effect of dilutive securitie 98 10z 13C
Weighted average diluted shares outstan 1,98¢ 1,95:¢ 1,92¢
Income per share from continuing operatic
Basic $ 74z $ 57 8 4.9C
Diluted $ 7.06 $ 54 $ 4.57

In 2007 and 2006, weighted average shares ofee=sirstock of 6,896 and 3,021 were excluded fraancticulation of weighted avere
basic shares outstanding. Incremental shares frorastied restricted stock, restricted stock units @eferred stock units were incluc
in the calculation of weighted average diluted shayutstanding using the treasury stock metho®@7 2nd in 2006.

Stock Plans

At December 31, 2007, the Company had four steaked compensation plans which are described ratlyebelow. Prior to January
2006, the Company accounted ftsr plans under the recognition and measurementigpoms of Accounting Principles Board Opin
No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employe€8PB 25”), and related interpretations. No stduksed employee compensa
cost was reflected in net income prior to Januagrgd06, as all options granted under those pladsdmaexercise price equal to
market value of the underlying common stock ondate of grant.

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopteghtbeisions of SFAS No. 123R, using the modif@spective transition method ¢
the disclosures that follow are based on applyiRrhS No. 123R. Under this transition method, compébna expense recogniz
included compensation expense for all shzsed awards granted prior to, but not yet vesteaf,alanuary 1, 2006, based on the ¢
date fair value estimated in accordance with thégimal provisions of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting foBtockBaset
Compensation” (“SFAS No. 123"). In accordance vtlib modifiedprospective transition method, results for the mpperiods have n
been restated.

Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123R all tax Hgaeesulting from the exercise of stock optionsrevreflected as operating cash fl
in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. SNAS123R requires that cash flows from the exerofsstockbased compensati
resulting from tax benefits in excess of recognizethpensation cost (excess tax benefits) be diedsik financing cash flows. In 2(
and 2006, $805,000 and $752,000, respectively i gxcess tax benefits was classified as financash flows. In 2005, $1,168,00(
such excess tax benefits was recorded as operatsigflows, as was prescribed prior to the adopfdFAS No. 123R.

The Companys 1997 Stock Incentive Plan provides for the gtarkey employees of incentive and nonqualified lstoptions, stoc
appreciation rights, restricted stock and perforoeashares. In addition, under the 1997 Stock tiaePlan, outside directors (direct
who are not employees of the Company or any surgidreceived automatic annual grants of nonqealifitock options to purchs
2,000 shares of common stock. The 1997 Stock theeRlan was amended in 2005 to provide that rditiathal stock options may
granted to outside directors thereunder. Underl8®/ Stock Incentive Plan, 624,425 shares, inatfgregate, of common stock w
reserved for grants. The purchase price of shasesd on the exercise of incentive options wasiredjio be at least equal to the
market value of such shares on the date of greiné purchase price for shares issued on the ereofimionqualified options a
restricted and performance shares was fixed byCmapensation Committee of the Board of Directdrke options granted beco
exercisable as determined by the Compensation Ctie&and expire no later than 10 years after the afegrant.
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During 1998, the Company'’s stockholders approvedatthoption of the Compars/’1998 Outside Directors Stock Option Plan whic

amended, provided for the automatic grant on Fepria1998 and February 1, 1999 of nonqualifiectistoptions to the Compary’
outside directors. Although no additional optianay be granted under the 1998 Outside DirectorskS@ption Plan, all outstandi

options under this plan continue to be governedheyterms and conditions of the plan and the egstiption agreements for th

grants.

During 2006, the Company’s stockholders approvedatioption of the Compars/2006 Equity Incentive Plan which provides for
grant to key employees and consultants of incerative nonqualified stock options, restricted stoektricted stock units, deferred st
units, stock appreciation rights and performancaresy Under the 2006 Equity Incentive Plan, 100,80@res, in the aggregate
common stock were reserved for awards. The purghdse of shares issued on the exercise of optioust be at least equal to the
market value of such shares on the date of greim purchase price for restricted and performaheees is fixed by the Compensa
Committee of the Board of Directors. The optiorsnged become exercisable and expire as deterrhingte Compensation Commit
except that incentive options expire no later th@ryears after the date of grant.

In May of 2007, a non-employee director deferrechpensation plan was put in place by the Compartys plan allows the Comparsy’
non-employee directors to elect to substitute defestedk units for the cash fees they are receivimgHeir services as directors. TI
may elect to receive their fees in deferred stagkswon an annual basis at the beginning of the. y&he number of deferred stock u
awarded for the cash fees foregone is based upgofaithmarket value of the Compasystock on the day the cash fees would have
paid if not for the deferral. The deferred stocktsiare convertible to stock on a one-fore basis at a future date as elected in ad
by the director, but no later than the Januaryfuihg the year in which the director ceases toeservthe Board of Directors.
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Option transactions for the three years in thegokeinded December 31, 2007 are as follows:

Weighted

Average
Shares Exercise Prict
Options outstanding at January 1, 2( 328,50( $ 22.3¢
Granted in 200! 12,50 $ 46.0¢
Expired in 200t (1,000 $ 31.3¢
Exercised in 200 (114,900 $ 19.8¢
Options outstanding at December 31, 2 225,100 $ 24.8¢
Granted in 200! 25,000 $ 71.8¢
Exercised in 200 (58,750 $ 23.1¢
Options outstanding at December 31, 2 191,35( $ 31.5Z
Granted in 200 -- -
Exercised in 200 (38,920 $ 21.9¢
Options outstanding at December 31, 2 152,43( $ 33.9¢
Exercisable options at December 31, 2 206,35( $ 24.2¢
Exercisable options at December 31, 2 166,35( $ 25.4¢
Exercisable options at December 31, 2 133,68( $ 28.65

All unvested options outstanding at December 30728re expected to vest. As of December 31, 20@Tetremained 58,524 shares
which options may be granted in the future under®97 Stock Incentive Plan and the 2006 Equiteritige Plan. The following tak
summarizes information about stock options outstandt December 31, 2007:

Options Outstandin Options Exercisabl
Weighted
average
remaining Weighted Weighted
Number  contractual average Number average
Range of exercise pric outstanding life exercise pric exercisable  exercise prici
$6.875-$14.063 62,63( 15year $ 11.41 62,63( $ 11.41
$22.5(-$29.30 12,00( 45year $ 25.9¢ 12,00C $ 25.9¢
$43.75-$46.00 52,80( 1.6 year $ 44.5¢ 52,80 $ 44 .5¢
$71.86 25,00( 3.6year $ 71.8¢ 6,25( $ 71.8¢
152,43( 2.1year g 33.9¢ 133,68( ¢ 28.6¢

The Company estimates the fair value of stock ogtigranted using the Black-Scholes optiizing formula and a single option av
approach. None of the Company’s grants includefopeance-based or markbased vesting conditions. The expected life regoresst|
period that the Company’s stoblased awards are expected to be outstanding andetersnined based on historical experience of €
awards, giving consideration to the contractuaihnteof the stoclbased awards, vesting schedules and expectatiohguoé employ
behavior. Stocksased payments made prior to January 1, 2006 wergiated for using the intrinsic value method undieB 25. The f
value of stock-based payments, funded with optiomsde subsequent to January 1, 2006 are valued tlenBlackScholes valuati
method with a volatility factor based on the Compsaihistorical stock trading history. The Comparasés the risliree interest rate us
the BlackScholes valuation method on the implied yield cotlseavailable on U. S. Treasury securities withegquivalent term. T
Company bases the dividend yield used in the B&aikeles valuation method on the Company’s stockleind history.
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There were no options granted in 2007. The fdineséor the options granted in 2006 and 2005 wémased at the date of grant usir
Black-Scholes option pricing model with the followiweighted average assumptions for 2006 and 2005:

2006 2005
Risk-free interest rat 4.S% 3.4%
Dividend yield 1.C% 1.3%
Volatility factor 25.(% 31.2%
Expected life 4 year 3 year:

The weighted average grant date fair values obgtmns granted in 2006 and 2005 were $18.02 afdb$]respectively, per share. ”
total intrinsic values of options exercised durg@p7, 2006 and 2005 were $3.0 million, $2.8 millaord $3.7 million, respectively. T
total intrinsic values of options outstanding armgtians currently exercisable at December 31, 2005te $13.9 million and $1Z
million, respectively.

During 2006, the Company made one award of resttistock under the 2006 Equity Incentive Plan. Wrkle terms of the award &
the plan, the restrictions lapse generally oveive-year period. During the vesting period, holderghef restricted stock have vot
rights and earn dividends, but the shares may aeatotd, assigned, transferred, pledged or otherensembered. Unvested shares
forfeited on termination of employment. Changeseisiricted stock for the years ended Decembe2@16 and 2007 were as follows:

Weighted

Average
Award Date

Fair Value

Shares Per Shart

Restricted stock at January 1, 2( -

Granted in 200! 7,500 $ 71.8¢
Vested in 200t - $ -
Restricted stock at December 31, 2( 7,500 $ 71.8¢
Granted in 200 - % -
Vested in 200° (1,500 $ 71.8¢
Restricted stock at December 31, 2007 6,000 ¢ 71.8¢

All shares of unvested restricted stock outstandih@ecember 31, 2007 are expected to vest. Tla itdtinsic value of unvest
restricted stock awards at December 31, 2007 afié @@&s $750,000 and $583,000, respectively. Tle tair value of restricted sto
vested during 2007 was $146,000.

-41-




Table of Contents

Atrion Corporation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (contied)

During 2007 restricted stock units were granteddudain key employees under the 2006 Equity Ingerfiilan. All of these stock ur
are convertible to shares of stock on a one-forimss when the restrictions lapse, which is gdiyepaer a fiveyear period. Unvest
stock units are forfeited on termination of empl&r During the vesting period, holders of all riestd stock units earn dividends
additional units. During 2007, certain outside dioes elected to receive stock units as compensdtio their services as bo:
members. Changes in restricted and deferred stoitk for the year ended December 31, 2007 wefellasvs:

Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Award Date Director¢ Award Date
Restricted Fair Value Deferred Fair Value
Stock Units Per Unit Stock Units Per Unit
Unvested stock units at January 1, 2 - --
Granted in 200 10,01C $ 96.0: 21C $ 98.81
Vested in 200° - 21C $ 98.87
Unvested stock units at December 31, 2 10,01C $ 96.0: --

All unvested restricted stock units at December Z1)7 are expected to vest. No restricted stocts wasted during 2007. The tc
intrinsic value of all outstanding stock units winiare not yet convertible at December 31, 2007udticg 210 deferred stock units h
for the accounts of outside directors, was $1,200.,0he total fair value of directorsleferred stock units vested during 2
was $21,000. As of December 31, 2007, there rerdér290 units which may be awarded in the futunedw-employee directors.

Compensation related to stock options is basedhefiair value of stock options granted using thacRiScholes optiopricing formulz
and a single option award approach. Compensatlateckto restricted stock and restricted stocksuisibased on the fair market valu
the stock on the date of the grant. These fairaslre then amortized on a straitiie- basis over the requisite service periods e
entire awards, which is generally the vesting perieor the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006Company recorded share-
based compensation expense as a “General and Axdrativie expenselh the amount of $368,000 and $116,000, respegtifcelall of
the above mentioned share-based compensation amamgs. The total tax benefit recognized in theiime statement from shabase:
compensation arrangements for the years ended ecedt, 2007 and 2006, was $130,000 and $35,080eckvely.

Unrecognized compensation cost information for @@mpany’s various shateased compensation types are shown below
December 31, 2007:

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Unrecognizel Years in
Compensatio Amortization
Cost Period
Stock options $ 291,00( 2.6
Restricted stoc 386,00( 3.6
Restricted stock units 851,00( 4.5

Total $ 1,528,001

The Company has a policy of utilizing existing segey shares to satisfy stock option exerciseskatai conversions and restricted st
awards.
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The following table illustrates the effect on netéme and income per share if the Company had expplie fair value recogniti
provisions of SFAS No. 123R to stock-based emplaysepensation in 2005 (in thousands, except peesraounts):

2005
Net income, as reporte $ 8,95¢
Deduct: Total stoc-based employee compensation expense determined fairdealue-based methods for ¢
awards, net of tax effects 12¢
Pro forma net incom $ 8,82¢
Income per share
Basic — as reported $ 4.9¢
Basic — pro forma $ 4.92
Diluted - as reportet $ 4.6¢€
Diluted — pro forma $ 4.5¢

Revenues From Major Customers

The Company had one major customer which repredeqproximately $12.6 million (14.2 percent), $mBlion (9.7 percent) and $7
million (10.8 percent) of the Company’s operatiegenues during 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Industry Segment and Geographic Information

The Company operates in one reportable industmneay designing, developing, manufacturing, selang distributing products for t
medical and healthcare industry and has no forefgrating subsidiaries. The Company has otherystdthes which include pressi
relief valves and inflation systems, which are sptimarily to the aviation and marine industriesueDto the similarities in prodt
technologies and manufacturing processes, theskigiare managed as part of the medical prodegmment. The Company recort
incidental revenues from its oxygen pipeline, whidtaled approximately $958,000 in 2007 and $955,00 each of 2006 a
2005. Pipeline net assets totaled $2.2 and $2lBmat December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectiv€lgmpany revenues from sale:
parties outside the United States totaled appraein®6 percent, 30 percent and 27 percent of t@@anys total revenues in 20(
2006 and 2005, respectively. No Company assetoeated outside the United States.

-43-




Table of Contents

(11)

Atrion Corporation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (contied)

A summary of revenues by geographic territory, baseshipping destination, for 2007, 2006 and 280&s follows (in thousands):

Year ended December 31

2007 2006 2005
United State: $ 56,86( $ 56,78: $ 52,28:
Canade 14,89( 9,23t 8,232
United Kingdom 2,204 1,897 1,98¢
Japar 3,19¢ 2,76 1,82¢
Germany 2,43¢ 1,82 1,18:
China 1,13¢ 98¢ 1,05¢
Other countries less than $1 milli 7,82( 7,531 5,52¢
Total $ 88,54( $ 81,02( $ 72,08¢

A summary of revenues by product line for 2007,&2860d 2005 is as follows (in thousands):

2007 2006 2005
Fluid Delivery $ 28,74 $ 25,80¢ $ 20,447
Cardiovascula 23,577 23,29( 19,301
Ophthalmology 17,61« 13,74« 14,51«
Other 18,60¢ 18,177 17,821
Total $ 88,54( $ 81,02( $ 72,08¢

Employee Retirement and Benefit Plan:

In September 2007, the Company terminated a noribatdry cash balance defined benefit retiremeahghat was maintained for
regular employees of the Company except those esQUedical. Prior to termination, it was the Camy's funding policy to make tl
annual contributions required by applicable redoiet and recommended by its actuary. The Compased ta December
measurement date for the plan. Affected employeesuad pension benefits through December 31, 2BQ¥ will not accrue ar
additional benefits under the plan after that da#tecurtailment gain of $361,000 was recorded i tihird quarter of 2007 related to
Companys action to terminate the plan. During Septemb&72be plan settled its obligations to a certaiougrof participants who
employment had terminated by acquiring for themudties from a life insurance company. A settlemiasts for this transaction
$671,000 was recorded in the third quarter of 2007
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (contied)

The following is a reconciliation of the beginniagd ending balances of the benefit obligation &edfair value of plan assets as of \
end (in thousands):

2007 2006
Actuarial Present Value of Benefit Obligation:
Accumulated Benefit Obligatio $ 3,61 $ 5,80¢
Projected Benefit Obligatio 3,612 5,90¢
Change in Projected Benefit Obligation:
Projected benefit obligation, Januar $ 590t $ 5,65k
Service cos 25¢ 27¢
Interest cos 24: 334
Actuarial (gain)/los: (88) 12
Benefits paic (4049) (374)
Curtailments (76) -
Settlement: (2,227) --
Projected benefit obligation, December $ 361: $ 5,90¢
Change in Plan Assets
Fair value of plan assets, Janual $ 6,31 $ 5,67¢
Actual return on plan asse 503 761
Employer contribution - 25C
Benefits paic (404) (374)
Settlement: (2,227) --
Fair value of plan assets, Decembe $ 4,18t $ 6,31:
Funded Status of Plan at Year Enc $ 57 $ 40¢

The following table summarizes amounts recognireaccumulated other comprehensive loss (in thowsyand

2007 2006
Unrecognized net actuarial lc $ 748 $ 1,762
Unrecognized prior service cc -- (389
Net unrecognized net actuarial Ic $ 748 $ 1,37:
Tax benefit recognize (262) (481
Net amoun $ 48¢ $ 892

The Company anticipates that $24,000 of the netaaiel loss will be amortized from accumulated otbemprehensive loss into |
periodic benefit cost during 2008 and that the rieing net actuarial loss will be recognized as argh at the final settlement of the
expected to happen in early 2009.
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The funded status of the Compasiydension plan was recognized as other asset®inahsolidated balance sheets in the amot
$573,000 at December 31, 2007 and $408,000 at Diesredd, 2006.

The components of net periodic pension cost fof72Q@006 and 2005 were as follows (in thousands):

Year ended December 31

2007 2006 2005

Components of Net Periodic
Pension Cost:
Service cos $ 25¢ % 27¢ 9 267
Interest cos 24¢ 334 32z
Expected return on asst (370 (44%) (45€)
Prior service cost amortizatic (28) (37) (37)
Actuarial loss 46 11€ 107
Transition amount amortizatic - -- (44)
Curtailment gair (361) -- --
Settlement los 671 -- --
Net periodic pension expen $ 46C $ 24€ % 15¢
Actuarial assumptions used to determine benefigabbns at December 31 were as follows:
2007 2006

Discount rate 6.0(% 6.0(%
Rate of compensation incree N/A 5.0(%

Actuarial assumptions used to determine net peripdinsion cost were as follows:
Year ended December 31

2007 2006 2005
Discount rate 6.00% 6.0(% 6.0(%
Expected lon-term return on asse 8.0(% 8.0(% 8.0(%
Rate of compensation incree 5.0(% 5.0(% 5.0(%

The Company’s expected long-term rate of returmiraggion is based upon the plan’s actual loagr investment results as well as
long-term outlook for investment returns in the kedplace at the time the assumption is made.

The Company’s pension plan assets at Decembel0BY, &hd 2006 were invested in the following asattgories:

2007 2006
Asset Category:
Equity securitie: 0% 77%
Debt securitie! 0% 19%
Other 10C% 4%
Total 10C% 10C%

The Company liquidated all plan investments in 8eytiter 2007 in conjunction with the decision to teate the plan. At December .
2007, all remaining assets were invested in afuate of deposit or in a money market account. Twmpany did not make a
contributions to the plan during 2007, and it bede that no further contributions to the plan vibi# required to finalize the pl
termination based upon the plan’s yead funding status. The Company estimates thate€ubenefit payments will total $90,00C
2008. The final payout for the plan terminatiodl Wkely occur in early 2009 after all regulatoapprovals are received. The Comg
currently projects benefit payments for the finayput to be approximately $3.8 million.
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During the third quarter the Company also termidaded settled its obligations under two nonqualifietirement plans by maki
additional contributions of $280,000 to the trustssuch plans and then distributing all trust &s$e the plan participants. A settlerr
loss of $19,000 was recorded in the third quart@007 with respect to these plans

The Company sponsors a defined contribution planafb employees. Each participant may contributeaie amounts of eligib
compensation. The Company makes a matching cotitibto the plan. The Comparsycontributions under this plan were $246,
$244,000 and $223,000 in 2007, 2006 and 2005, ctsply.

Commitments and Contingencies

From time to time and in the ordinary course ofibess, the Company may be subject to various clatimrges and litigation. In so
cases, the claimants may seek damages, as wdlhasrelief, which, if granted, could require sifigant expenditures. The Comp:
accrues the estimated costs of settlement or dasnalgen a loss is deemed probable and such cosestmeable, and accrues for le
costs associated with a loss contingency whensifogrobable and such amounts are estimable. Wieerthese costs are expense
incurred. If the estimate of a probable loss oedsé costs is a range and no amount within theersngore likely, the Company accr
the minimum amount of the range. As of December280)7, the Company had accrued $200,000 for lezgd find expenses the
expected to incur in connection with the litigatianarbitration of two such matters.

The Company had an ongoing dispute which was féhpisettled in the third quarter of 2007. The Compeecorded a ongme benefi
of $1.4 million, net of expenses, in operating exges. As part of this settlement the Company creddive additional annual payme
totaling $4.1 million through 2025. The Company didt record these payments as part of the settiechem to the uncertainty
collection.

The Company has arrangements with two of its exesubfficers (the “Executives”pursuant to which the termination of tt
employment under certain circumstances would résditmp sum payments to the Executives. Termamatinder such circumstance
2008 could result in payments aggregating $1.Gonikkxcluding any excise tax that may be reimbuesbip the Company.

During 2005 and 2006, the Company constructed a faeility in St. Petersburg, Florida for its Halk&poberts operation. The n
facility is located approximately four miles frorhet leased facility then being used by that subsidi@dhe Company completed -
construction of this new facility and moved the kégl-Roberts operation into the new facility during tiérd quarter of 2006. Tt
Company terminated its lease for the former HalReyperts facility which was vacated in October oD@0This lease was bei
accounted for as an operating lease, and the rexpainse for the years ended December 31, 2008G&was $363,000 and $422,(
respectively. There is no future rental commitmamder this lease.
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(13) Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited):

Operating Operating Income Per Income Per
Quarter Ende: Revenue Income Net Income Basic Sharc  Diluted Shart
(In thousands, except per share amot

03/31/07 $ 23,037 $ 4737 $ 3,13¢ $ 1.6¢ $ 1.5¢
06/30/07 23,19¢ 5,42¢ 3,61¢ 1.92 1.8:
09/30/07 21,31: 5,79t 4,11( 2.17 2.07
12/31/07 20,98¢ 4,23 3,14 1.65 1.57
03/31/06 $ 19,50 $ 3,05 % 2,10¢ $ 115 $ 1.0¢
06/30/06 20,84¢ 4,12¢ 2,98t 1.62 1.52
09/30/06 19,29( 3,18¢ 2,69¢ 1.4¢ 1.3¢
12/31/06 21,37¢ 3,974 2,97¢ 1.6C 1.52

The quarter ended September 30, 2007 included peoia items that combined to add $1.1 million p@i@ting income, $695,000 to
income, $0.37 to net income per basic share, arR6%6 net income per diluted share.

The quarterly information presented above refléntthe opinion of management, all adjustments s&ay for a fair presentation of the
results for the interim periods presented.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

The Company’s management, with the participatiothef Companys Chief Executive Officer and its Chief Financidfifi€er, evaluated tt
Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (ésedkin Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15¢e)) as of December 31, 2007. Be
upon this evaluation, the Chief Executive OfficeldaChief Financial Officer have concluded that ®empanys disclosure controls a
procedures are effective. There were no changéseitCompanys internal control over financial reporting for tfaurth fiscal quarter end
December 31, 2007 that have materially affecte@rerreasonably likely to materially affect the Camy's internal control over financ
reporting.

There has been no change in the Company’s inteomdtol over financial reporting during the quageded December 31, 2007.
MANAGEMENT'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANC |AL REPORTING

The Companys management, including the Chief Executive Offmed Chief Financial Officer, is responsible fotaddishing and maintainir
adequate internal control over financial reportagydefined in Rule 1385(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934amended. Tt
Companys internal control system is designed to providesoaable assurance regarding the reliability @frfaial reporting and the prepara
of financial statements for external purposes toetdance with generally accepted accounting priesipAll internal control systems, no ma
how well designed, have inherent limitations. Ateys of internal control may become inadequate tive because of changes in conditior
deterioration in the degree of compliance with ploéicies or procedures. Therefore, even those systietermined to be effective can pro
only reasonable assurance with respect to finastaé&ment preparation and presentation.

The Company’s management assessed the effectivehélss Company internal control over financial reporting as oédember 31, 20(
using the criteria set forth by the Committee 0b$goring Organizations of the Treadway Commiss©@@$0) inInternal Controlintegratec
Framework. Based on this assessment, the Company’s manageor@iuded that, as of December 31, 2007, the @owyip internal contrc
over financial reporting was effective.

Grant Thornton LLP, an independent registered pudicounting firm, has audited the consolidatedrfaial statements included in this Re
and, as part of their audit, has issued the folhoweport on the effectiveness of our internal mardgver financial reporting.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

Board of Directors and
Stockholders of Atrion Corporation

We have audited Atrion Corporation’s internal cohtiver financial reporting as of December 31, 208¥6ed on criteria establishediiternal
Control—Integrated Frameworkssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatiohghe Treadway Commission (COSO). At
Corporations management is responsible for maintaining effectnternal control over financial reporting and fits assessment of 1
effectiveness of internal control over financigboeting, included in the accompanying ManagensReport on Internal Control over Finan
Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an @piron Atrion Corporation’s internal control ovéndincial reporting based on our audit.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti8a&@nited States). Those stand:
require that we plan and perform the audit to abtaasonable assurance about whether effectivenaiteontrol over financial reporting w
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal corar@r financial reporting, assessing the
that a material weakness exists, testing and etimaduthe design and operating effectiveness ofiratecontrol based on the assessed risk
performing such other procedures as we consideredssary in the circumstances. We believe thaaudit provides a reasonable basis fol
opinion.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is @@ess designed to provide reasonable assuranaeliregthe reliability of financi:
reporting and the preparation of financial statetsdor external purposes in accordance with gelyeescepted accounting principles
companys internal control over financial reporting inclsdnose policies and procedures that (1) pertathéaonaintenance of records tha
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleet ttansactions and dispositions of the assetseotdimpany; (2) provide reasonable assu
that transactions are recorded as necessary toitpgr@paration of financial statements in accor@gamdth generally accepted accoun
principles, and that receipts and expenditureshef company are being made only in accordance withogéizations of management :
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanaskurance regarding prevention or timely deteatfounauthorized acquisition, use
disposition of the company’s assets that could lrareterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohwver financial reporting may not prevent or détmisstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgext to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, ol
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Atrion Corporation maintained, ilh material respects, effective internal controkeovinancial reporting as of December
2007, based on criteria establishedniternal Control—Integrated Framewoigsued by COSO

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@dnited States), the consolida
balance sheets of Atrion Corporation and subsielasas of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the detatesolidated statements of inco
changes in stockholdersguity and comprehensive income, and cash flowgdch of the three years in the period ended DeeeBth 200"
and our report dated March 13, 2008, expressedaanalified opinion on those financial statements.

/s/ Grant Thornton LLP
Dallas, Texas
March 13, 2008
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

There was no information required to be disclosea ieport on Form 8-K during the three months dridecember 31, 2007 that was not
reported.

PART llI
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT
Directors

The information for this item relating to directay6the Company is incorporated by reference frobm @ompany's definitive proxy statemr
for its 2008 annual meeting of stockholders.

Executive Officers
The information for this item relating to executiefficers of the Company is set forth in Part ki report.

The information required by Item 405 of Regulati®+K is incorporated by reference from the Compardefinitive proxy statement for
2008 annual meeting of stockholders.

The Company has adopted a Code of Ethics and Bessiienduct that applies to all of the Companditrectors, officers and employees.
Code of Ethics and Business Conduct will be praditte any person, without charge, upon request addreto: Corporate Secretary, At
Corporation, One Allentown Parkway, Allen, Texa9d3.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information for this item is incorporated byference from the Company's definitive proxy statetrfer its 2008 annual meeting
stockholders.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners

The information for this item is incorporated byfemence from the Company's definitive proxy statetrfer its 2008 annual meeting
stockholders.

Security Ownership of Management

The information for this item is incorporated byfemence from the Company's definitive proxy statetrfer its 2008 annual meeting
stockholders.

Changes in Control

The Company knows of no arrangements that maysabsequent date result in a change in controleoCthimpany.
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ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information for this item is incorporated byference from the Company's definitive proxy statetrfer its 2008 annual meeting
stockholders.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information for this item is incorporated byerence from the Company’s definitive proxy statetrfer its 2008 annual meeting of
stockholders.

PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(@) The following documents are filed as a part of theigsort on Form 1-K:

1. Financial Statements of the Compa
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourf&imm
Consolidated Statements of Income
Consolidated Balance Sheets
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholdguitfeand Comprehensive Income

2. Financial Statement Schedul:
Schedule I- Consolidated Valuation and Qualifying Accou
Allowance for Doubtful Receivable

December 31
2007 2006 2005

(in thousands

Beginning balanc $ 14¢ % 65 $ 11¢
Additions charged to expen (30 10¢€ (34)
Deductions from resen (87) (22 (19

Ending balanci $ 32 $ 14¢  $ 65

All other financial statement schedules have bemitted since the required information is includedtie consolidated financial
statements or the notes thereto or is not appkcabtequired.
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3. Exhibits. Reference as made to Iltem 15(b) of this reportamFL(-K.
(b) Exhibits
Exhibit
Numbers Description
2a Asset Purchase Agreement, dated March 19, 199%geketAtrion Corporation and Midcoast Energy Resesyrinc Y
3a Certificate of Incorporation of Atrion Corporatiotiated December 30, 1966
3b Bylaws of Atrion Corporation, as last amended owcémeber 3, 2009
10a*  Atrion Corporation 1997 Stock Incentive Pf&h
10b*  Form of Award Agreement for Incentive Stock Opt@n
10c*  Form of Award Agreement for Nonqualified Stock @ptifor Key Employeé”
10d*  Form of Award Agreement for Nonqualified Stock @yptifor Director”)
10e*  Atrion Corporation 1998 Outside Directors Stock ioptPlan®
10" Form of Stock Option Agreemefit
109*  severance Plan for Chief Financial Offi¢E?
10h*  Chief Executive Officer Amended and Restated Emplegt Agreemerit")
10i*  Atrion Corporation 2006 Equity Incentive PISf
10j*  Form of Award Agreement for Incentive Stock Optiemder the Atrion Corporation 2006 Equity IncentiRian®®
10k*  Form of Award Agreement for Non-Qualified Stock @ptunder the Atrion Corporation 2006 Equity IndeatPlan™®
10" Form of Award Agreement for Restricted Stock urttierAtrion Corporation 2006 Equity Incentive PI&A
10m*  Deferred Compensation Plan for Non-Employee Dinex(td
10n*  Form of Deferred Fee Election Form — Deferred Camspéon Plan for Non-Employee Directétd
100*  Non-Employee Director Stock Purchase P{&h
10p*  Form of Stock Purchase Election Form — Non-Empldyizector Stock Purchase P14
100*  |ncentive Compensation Plan for Chief Financiali€if for Calendar Years Beginning 20689
10r*  Halkey-Roberts Corporation Incentive Compensatitam gy
21 Subsidiaries of Atrion Corporation as of Decembkr2007%?
23 Consent of Grant Thornton LL#
31.1  sarbanes-Oxley Act Section 302 Certification ofeEliixecutive Officef*?
31.2  sarbanes-Oxley Act Section 302 Certification ofeEtfinancial Officef®?
32.1  Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1356 Miopted Pursuant to Section 906 of The Sarbai@dey Act Of 2002%?
32.2  Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1356 Miopted Pursuant to Section 906 of The Sarbaidey Act Of 2002%?
Notes
1) Incorporated by reference to Appendix A to the Biifie Proxy Statement of the Company dated A3il 2997.
(2) Incorporated by reference to Appendix B to the Bitifie Proxy Statement of the Company dated Janli@yy997
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®3)
(4)
()
(6)
(7)
(8)
9)

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to thenk@&-K of Atrion Corporation filed December 6, 20

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4(b) to Huem $-8 of Atrion Corporation filed June 10, 1998 (File.N83:-56509).
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to thenfr&-8 of Atrion Corporation filed June 10, 1998 (File N83:-56509).
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.6 to thenk&-8 of Atrion Corporation filed June 10, 1998 (File N83:-56509).
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.7 to thenfr&-8 of Atrion Corporation filed June 10, 1998 (File N83:-56509).
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to thenr&-8 of Atrion Corporation, filed June 10, 1998 (ANe. 33:-56511).
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to thenk&-8 of Atrion Corporation, filed June 10, 1998 (ANe. 33:-56511).
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10b to Forr-Q of Atrion Corporation dated May 12, 20(

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Fo®-Q of Atrion Corporation dated November 6, 20

Incorporated by reference to Appendix A to DefirgtiProxy Statement of Atrion Corporation dated A@ri2006.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Fo®-Q of Atrion Corporation dated August 8, 20!

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Fo®-Q of Atrion Corporation dated August 8, 20!

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Foi®-Q of Atrion Corporation dated August 8, 20I

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to thenk&-8 of Atrion Corporation filed June 27. 2007 (File.N\83:-144086).
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thenr&-8 of Atrion Corporation filed June 27. 2007 (File N83:-144086).
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to thenk&-8 of Atrion Corporation filed June 27. 2007 (File.N83:-144085).
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thenr&-8 of Atrion Corporation filed June 27. 2007 (File.N83:-144085).
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Fo®-Q of Atrion Corporation dated August 7, 20!

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to Foi®-Q of Atrion Corporation dated August 7, 20I

Filed herewith

* Management Contract or Compensatory Plan or Ayeament
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 18{dhe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report tc

signed on its behalf by the undersigned, therednlp authorized.

Atrion Corporatior

By: /s/ Emile A. Batte
Emile A. Battai
Chairman and Chie
Executive Officel

Dated: March 13, 2008

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf of

registrant and in the capacities and on the datisated.

Signature Title
/s/ Emile A. Batta Chairman and Chief Executi
Emile A. Battal Officer (Principal Executive Officel
/sl Jeffery Stricklani Vice President, Chief Financial Officer a
Jeffery Stricklanc Secretar-Treasurer (Principal Financi

and Accounting Officer

/s/ Hugh J. Morgan, J Director
Hugh J. Morgan, J

/s/ Roger F. Stebbin Director
Roger F. Stebbin

/s/ John P. Stupp, . Director
John P. Stupp, J

/s/ Ronald N. Spauldin Director
Ronald N. Spauldin
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March 13, 200¢

March 13, 200¢

March 13, 2008

March 13, 2008

March 13, 2008

March 13, 200¢




Exhibit 21
Subsidiaries of Atrion Corporation
As of December 31, 2007
Subsidiary State of Incorporatio Ownershig
Atrion Medical Products, Inc Alabama 100%
Halkey-Roberts Corporatio Florida 100%
Quest Medical, Inc Texas 100%
AlaTenn Pipeline Company LL Alabama 100%

Atrion Leasing Company LL( Alabama 100%




Exhibit 23

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We have issued our reports dated March 13, 2008ynaganying the consolidated financial statement$ schedule and management’
assessment of the effectiveness of internal cootret financial reporting included in the Annualg®et of Atrion Corporation and subsidial
on Form 10K for the year ended December 31, 2007. We hecelgent to the incorporation by reference of sajubrts in the Registrati
Statements of Atrion Corporation and subsidiaried=orms S-8 (File No. 33-61309, effective August 1995, File No. 33%6511, effectiv
June 10, 1998, File No. 333-56509, effective Junel998, File No. 333-63318, effective June 19,12(le No. 333142917, effective Me
14, 2007, File No. 333-144085, effective June D72 and File No. 333-144086, effective June 210,720

/s/ Grant Thornton LLP
Dallas, Texas
March 13, 2008




Exhibit 31.1
Chief Executive Officer Certification
[, Emile A. Battat, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report of Atrion @aation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaioreny untrue statement of a material fact or améitate a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeler which such statements were made, not misigadth respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegoks presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer anaré responsible for establishing and maintainiisgldsure controls and procedures (as defin
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) amuniat control over financial reporting (as defined&xchange Act Rules 13a — 15(f) and
15d — 15(f)) for the registrant and we have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedotes designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to thgisgrant, including its consolidated subsidiariesnade known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidhig report is being prepared,;

b) Designed such internal control over financiglaiting, or caused such internal control over faiahreporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggtfae reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallymedeaccounting principles; and

c¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratitslosure controls and procedures and presenttdsimeport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proces) as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegid’s internal control over the financial repogithat occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth gesain the case of an annual report) that has madlieaffected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal comiwger financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer antalve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimrernal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant's auditors and the audit committiethe registrant's board of directors (or pesguerforming the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regidteaability to record, process, summarize and refreincial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: March 13, 200
[s/Emile A. Battat
Emile A. Battai
Chairman ant
Chief Executive Office




Exhibit 31.2
Chief Financial Officer Certification
I, Jeffery Strickland, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report of Atrion @aation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaioreny untrue statement of a material fact or améitate a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeler which such statements were made, not misigadth respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegoks presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer anaré responsible for establishing and maintainiisgldsure controls and procedures (as defin
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) amuniat control over financial reporting (as defined&xchange Act Rules 13a — 15(f) and
15d — 15(f)) for the registrant and we have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedotes designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to thgisgrant, including its consolidated subsidiariesnade known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidhig report is being prepared,;

b) Designed such internal control over financiglaiting, or caused such internal control over faiahreporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggtfae reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallymedeaccounting principles; and

c¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratitslosure controls and procedures and presenttdsimeport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proces) as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegid’s internal control over the financial repogithat occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth gesain the case of an annual report) that has madlieaffected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal comiwger financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer antalve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimrernal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant's auditors and the audit committiethe registrant's board of directors (or pesguerforming the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regidteaability to record, process, summarize and refreincial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: March 13, 200
[s] JefferyStrickland
Jeffery Stricklanc
Vice President an
Chief Financial Office




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350SADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES
OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. section 1350, the undersigffexr of Atrion Corporation (the “Company”), ey certifies, to such officer’s
knowledge, that the Company’s Annual Report on FbéaK for the year ended December 31, 2007 (thetiRe) fully complies with the
requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d), as appléads the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and thatinformation contained in the Report
fairly presents, in all material respects, theffitial condition and results of operations of therfpany.

Dated: March 13, 200 [s/Emile A. Battat
Emile A. Battai
Chief Executive Office

The foregoing certification is made solely for posp of 18 U.S.C. section 1350 and not for any gtligpose.




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350SADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES
OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. section 1350, the undersigffexr of Atrion Corporation (the “Company”), ey certifies, to such officer’s
knowledge, that the Company’s Annual Report on FbéaK for the year ended December 31, 2007 (thetiRe) fully complies with the
requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d), as appléads the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and thatinformation contained in the Report
fairly presents, in all material respects, theffitial condition and results of operations of therfpany.

Dated: March 13, 200 [s/ JefferyStrickland
Jeffery Stricklanc
Chief Financial Office

The foregoing certification is made solely for posp of 18 U.S.C. section 1350 and not for any gtligpose.




